Public Document Pack

Agenda Reports & Other Papers
Presented to the
Meeting of the
Adult Care and Health Cabinet Panel
on
Wednesday, 6 February 2019

1.

Agenda

1 - 104

Agenda

AGENDA for a meeting of the ADULT CARE & HEALTH CABINET PANEL in
COMMITTEE ROOM B, at COUNTY HALL, HERTFORD on WEDNESDAY 6
FEBRUARY 2019 at 10.00AM
___________________________________________________________________
MEMBERS OF THE PANEL (13) (Quorum 3)
N Bell; E H Buckmaster; F Button (substituting for F Guest); E M Gordon; S Gordon; K M
Hastrick; D J Hewitt; F R G Hill (Vice Chairman); T Howard: J S Kaye; N A Quinton; R M
Roberts (Chairman); R G Tindall;
Meetings of the Cabinet Panel are open to the public (this includes the press) and
attendance is welcomed. However, there may be occasions when the public are excluded
from the meeting for particular items of business. Any such items are taken at the end of
the public part of the meeting and are listed under “Part II (‘closed’) agenda”.
Committee Room B is fitted with an audio system to assist those with hearing
impairment. Anyone who wishes to use this should contact main (front) reception.
Members are reminded that all equalities implications and equalities
impact assessments undertaken in relation to any matter on this agenda must be
rigorously considered prior to any decision being reached on that matter.
Members are reminded that:
(1)

if they consider that they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any matter
to be considered at the meeting they must declare that interest and must not
participate in or vote on that matter unless a dispensation has been granted
by the Standards Committee;

(2)

if they consider that they have a Declarable Interest (as defined in paragraph
5.3 of the Code of Conduct for Members) in any matter to be considered at
the meeting they must declare the existence and nature of that interest. If a
member has a Declarable Interest they should consider whether they should
participate in consideration of the matter and vote on it.

PART I (PUBLIC) AGENDA
1.

MINUTES
To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 12 December 2018.

2.

PUBLIC PETITIONS
The opportunity for any member of the public, being resident in Hertfordshire,

Agenda Pack Page 1

1

to present a petition relating to a matter with which the Council is concerned,
which is relevant to the remit of this Cabinet Panel and which contains
signatories who are either resident in or who work in Hertfordshire.
Members of the public who are considering raising an issue of concern via a
petition are advised to contact their local member of the Council. The
Council's criterion and arrangements for the receipt of petitions are set out in
Annex 22 - Petitions Scheme of the Constitution.
If you have any queries about the petitions procedure for this meeting please
contact Elaine Manzi, by telephone on (01992) 588062 or by e-mail to
elaine.manzi@hertfordshire.gov.uk.
At the time of the publication of this agenda no notices of petitions have been
received.
3.

INTEGRATED PLAN 2019/20 – 2022/23 ADULT CARE & HEALTH
Joint Report of the Director of Resources & Director of Adult Care Services
Members are asked to bring the following reports to the meeting, which
have been circulated separately to all Members of the County Council:
‘Public Engagement and Consultation on the 2019/20 –
2022/2023 Integrated Plan’ (circulated as Item 4(i) for the
Cabinet meeting of 21 January 2019); and
‘DRAFT INTEGRATED PLAN 2019/20 – 2022/23
(incorporating the Strategic Direction and Financial
Consequences and the Treasury Management Strategy)’
(circulated as Item 4(ii) for the Cabinet meeting of 21 January
2019).

4.

APPROVAL OF THE NEW LEARNING DISABILITY STRATEGY 2019-2024
– THE BIG PLAN
Report of the Director of Adult Care Services

5.

PROVISION OF MENTAL HEALTH & LEARNING DISABILITY SERVICES
IN HERTFORDSHIRE
Report of the Director of Adult Care Services

6.

OTHER PART I BUSINESS
Such Part I (public) business which, if the Chairman agrees, is of sufficient
urgency to warrant consideration.

PART II (‘CLOSED’) AGENDA
EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

Agenda Pack Page 2
2

Part II business has been notified. The Chairman will move:“That under Section 100(A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and public
be excluded from the meeting for the following item/s of business on the grounds that
it/they involve/s the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in paragraph 5 of
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the said Act and the public interest in maintaining the
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information.”
PART II AGENDA
1.

PROVISION OF MENTAL HEALTH & LEARNING DISABILITY SERVICES IN
HERTFORDSHIRE
Report of the Director of Adult Care Services

If you require further information about this agenda please contact
Elaine Manzi, Democratic Services, on telephone no. (01992) 588062 or email
elaine.manzi@hertfordshire.gov.uk.
Agenda documents are also available on the internet here
KATHRYN PETTITT
CHIEF LEGAL OFFICER

Agenda Pack Page 3
3

This page is intentionally left blank

Minutes

To: All Members of the Adult Care
& Health Cabinet Panel, Chief
Executive, Chief Officers, All
officers named for ‘actions’

From:
Legal, Democratic & Statutory Services
Ask for: Elaine Manzi
Ext: 28062

ADULT CARE & HEALTH CABINET PANEL
WEDNESDAY 12 DECEMBER 2018
ATTENDANCE
MEMBERS OF THE PANEL
N Bell; E H Buckmaster; E M Gordon; S Gordon; F Guest; K M Hastrick; D Hewitt; F R G Hill
(Vice Chairman); T Howard; J S Kaye; N A Quinton; R G Tindall; C B Wyatt-Lowe (Chairman);
OTHER MEMBERS IN ATTENDANCE
None
Upon consideration of the agenda for the Adult Care & Health Cabinet Panel meeting on
12 December 2018 as circulated, copy annexed, conclusions were reached and are
recorded below:
Note: No conflicts of interest were declared by any member of the Cabinet Panel
in relation to the matters on which conclusions were reached at this meeting.
PART I (‘OPEN’) BUSINESS
1.

MINUTES

ACTION

1.1

The Part I and Part II of the Cabinet Panel meeting held on 21
November 2018 were confirmed as a correct record and signed by
the Chairman.

2.

PUBLIC PETITIONS

2.1

There were no public petitions.

CHAIRMAN’S
INITIALS
…………….

Agenda Pack Page 5

4

3.

APPROVAL FOR ADULT CARE SERVICES (ACS)
INFORMATION AND ADVICE STRATEGY
Officer Contact:
Sharon Robinson- Programme Manager ( tel 01992 555131)

3.1

Members considered the updated Adult Care Services Information
& Advice Strategy which now incorporated the outcomes of Adult
Care Services 3 and 15 year plans.

3.2

The Panel discussed the strategy, and noted the importance that
the public had placed during the consultation process with regards
to the importance of face to face contact, and expressed concern
with regards to how this would be actioned through the strategy.

3.3

Member concern was also expressed about ensuring that the
public were directed to speaking to the correct person to answer
their query.

3.4

The Panel were assured that this would be managed through
awareness raising of areas and services including social
prescribing, the Connected Lives strategy, Herts Help and work
with local and district councils to enhance the promotion of
community links and activities.

3.5

Member comments that community pharmacies and veterinary
surgeries would also be a key area of support was noted, and it
was confirmed that work was already being undertaken in this
area.

3.6

Members also learnt about the roles of Community Navigators and
Community Librarians.

3.7

Further to discussion, it was agreed that consideration would be
given to producing a leaflet centralising key information,
signposting and contacts for members of the public to use.
Assurance was received that this could be undertaken at minimal
cost.

3.8

In response to a Member question, assurance was received that
work had been undertaken with social workers to help them
understand the needs of the different cultures within the county,
and where necessary interpreters, including British Sign Language
Interpreters were available to further support frontline workers in
reaching all communities.

3.9

Members were also advised that the council had commissioned
Carers in Herts to further support those who were unable to access
information by traditional methods, such as online or by phone.

Sharon
Robinson

5
CHAIRMAN’S
INITIALS
…………….

Agenda Pack Page 6

3.10

Further to discussion it was noted that there may be a number of
voluntary groups or organisations in existence that may not be
known to the council and it was agreed that in line with the
relaunched strategy, the council would also look to raise
awareness and refresh and update the community directory, to
ensure that as many organisations as possible were listed.

3.11

CONCLUSION:

Sharon
Robinson

Panel noted and commented upon the report, and the
Information and Advice Strategy, and recommended to Cabinet
that Cabinet:
 Approve the Information & Advice Strategy.
 Agree that the issues deemed most important from the
public consultation should be prioritised in the action plan.
4.

ADULT CARE SERVICES CONNECTED LIVES UPDATE
Officer Contact:
Mark Harvey Head of Adult Disability Service and
Sharon Robinson – Programme Manager

4.1

Members received an update on the work of Connected Lives. The
presentation provided can be found here:
https://democracy.hertfordshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=2
07&MId=229&Ver=4#

4.2

The panel were pleased to learn of the success of the Connected
Lives scheme, with 81% of the people who contacted the
Department having their immediate needs met with no recourse to
ongoing services.

4.3

Members acknowledged that it was difficult to analyse the long term
success of the scheme, as there was no further contact made with
service users unless they were re-referred to the Department.

4.4

It was also acknowledged that it was difficult to analyse the amount
of unmet need, although Members received assurance that work
was ongoing to raise awareness of the approach, and listen and
adapt to the changing needs of service users as and where
appropriate.

6
CHAIRMAN’S
INITIALS
…………….

Agenda Pack Page 7

4.5
4.6

Assurance was also received that self funders were also able to use
the schemes available.
CONCLUSION:
Panel noted and commented upon the report.

5

SPENDING PLANS FOR ADULT CARE SERVICES (ACS)
WINTER CARE FUNDING
Officer Contact: Helen Maneuf, Assistant Director Planning &
Resources (Tel: 01438 845502)

5.1

Members received a report outlining the council’s proposals for the
spending the National Winter Care Grant. It was noted that the
council had received a £4.135m grant allocation from central
government.

5.2

The Panel were pleased to learn of the plans to fund increase
staffing and care capacity, but expressed extreme concern about
the ability to recruit staff given the known challenges of recruiting to
the care market and expressed further concern about the
subsequent sustainability of the workforce given the fact that the
monies received were a short term grant as opposed to continued
funding.

5.3

The Liberal Democrat lead spokesman stated that his concerns
were particularly emphasised by the fact the council’s risk register
indicated that the risk of recruiting to and sustaining care staff was
classified as high.

5.4

Members received assurance that the council were continually
working to mitigate the risk by introducing measures such as the
workforce strategy. In addition ongoing dialogue was taking place
with influential bodies such as the Local Government Association
and MP’s to ensure the concerns remained high on the national
agenda. Members received further assurance that it had been
confirmed that an additional grant from the government would be
received in the 2019/20 year which allowed the council to plan on a
longer term basis.

5.5

In response to the concerns regarding ensuring that Members of
the panel were kept informed of the risks applying to Adult Care &
Health, it was agreed to incorporate data from the risk register onto
the quarterly performance report presented at Panel. The
Chairman also encouraged all Members of the Panel to read the
agenda and reports of the Audit Committee to ensure that they
were kept abreast of detail regarding the risk register.

Iain
Macbeath/
All Members

7
CHAIRMAN’S
INITIALS
…………….

Agenda Pack Page 8

5.6

A Member suggestion that the council link in with housing
associations to enhance the ability of patients being able to return
home was noted.

5.7

In response to a Member challenge about the potential equalities
impacts on carers and disabled people as highlighted in the
Equalities Impact Assessment, assurance was received that
Carers were entitled to an independent carers assessment to help
support their needs, and work was being undertaken to support
disabled people on a case by case basis.
CONCLUSION:

5.8

Panel noted and commented upon the content of the report and
recommended to Cabinet that it approved the proposals made by
the council in respect of how the Winter Care funding should be
spent.

6
LOCAL ACCOUNT FOR ADULT SOCIAL CARE
Officer Contact:
Alex Ogle – Adult Social Care Performance Manager (Tel: 01438
844291)
6.1

Members received a report outlining the Local Account for Adult
Social Care for Hertfordshire for 2017/18, which detailed the
performance of adult social care services, highlighting areas of
strength and areas for improvement. The panel noted that although
the report was not a statutory requirement, it provided a useful tool
to provide transparency and accountability to local communities.

6.2

The Panel were interested to learn that £153m was spent on
learning disability services due to increasing demand in services
for learning disability services. It was confirmed that this pattern of
spend was likely to continue in future years.

6.3

In response to a Member challenge with regards to the need for
increased objectivity in the ‘How Hertfordshire Compares’ statistics,
it was agreed that officers would develop an interactive tool for
2018/19 in order to provide further analysis.

6.4

During discussion it was noted that 72% more people were
supported on discharge from hospital than in the previous year.
Confirmation was received that this increased support had
improved hospital discharge rates and reduced the risk of patients
needing to be readmitted in to hospital.

Alex Ogle

8
CHAIRMAN’S
INITIALS
…………….

Agenda Pack Page 9

6.5

Members received assurance that the slight decline in service user
satisfaction results, (66% in 2016/17 to 65.3% in 2017/8), would be
investigated and mitigated where appropriate.
CONCLUSION:
Panel noted and commented upon the report.

7.

CHARGING CONSULTATION UPDATE

Officer contact: Helen Maneuf, Assistant Director Planning &
Resources (Tel 01438 845502)
7.1

Members received a report detailing the impact of charging policy
for community based services. Members recollected that the report
detailing the intention to roll out these charges had first been
presented to the Panel in January 2018 and the charges
implemented in April 2018.

7.2

In response to a Member challenge, officers agreed to provide
more detail on the number of service users who had ceased to
receive double handed care to ensure that this was not creating an
increase in the numbers of people requiring residential care.
Assurance was received that all residents assessed as needing
double handed care were continuing to receive it; however,
solutions had been implemented and monitored for those assessed
as being able to manage with alternative provision.

7.3

Further assurance was also received that assessments and
monitoring would be undertaken for service users who had
cancelled the telecare service, scheduled to be a chargeable
service from December 2018.

7.4

Members also noted that any cancellation of flexicare had also
been assessed and monitored on a case by case basis.

7.5

The panel acknowledged the progress of the charging policy and
that the Executive Member would receive a further update report in
approximately six months’ time to enable more informed judgement
and monitoring about the impact this was having on service users.

8.

OTHER PART I BUSINESS

Helen
Maneuf

Helen
Maneuf

None reported

KATHRYN PETTITT
9
CHAIRMAN’S
INITIALS
…………….

Agenda Pack Page 10

CHIEF LEGAL OFFICER

CHAIRMAN

10
CHAIRMAN’S
INITIALS
…………….

Agenda Pack Page 11

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item No.

HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
ADULT CARE AND HEALTH CABINET PANEL

3

WEDNESDAY 6 FEBRUARY 2019 AT 10.00AM
INTEGRATED PLAN 2019/20 - 2022/23 ADULT CARE AND HEALTH
Joint Report of Interim Director of Resources and Director of Adult Care
Services
Author(s):

Helen Maneuf (Assistant Director Planning and Resources)

Executive Members: Richard Roberts (Executive Member for Adult Care and
Health)
Ralph Sangster (Executive Member for Resources and
Performance)
1.

Purpose of the Report

1.1

To highlight the areas of the Integrated Plan which relate to Adult Care
and Health in order for Panel to consider these and provide comment.

1.2

Members are asked to bring the following reports to the meeting, which
have been circulated separately to all Members of the County Council:
‘Public Engagement and Consultation on the 2019/20 –
2022/2023 Integrated Plan’ (circulated as Item 4(i) for the
Cabinet meeting of 21 January 2019); and
‘DRAFT INTEGRATED PLAN 2019/20 – 2022/23
(incorporating the Strategic Direction and Financial
Consequences and the Treasury Management Strategy)’
(circulated as Item 4(ii) for the Cabinet meeting of 21 January
2019).

2.

Summary

2.1

The Integrated Plan brings together the financial impact of service
plans and the available funding to resource these, over the next four
years. Strategic Direction summaries have been produced for each
Portfolio, which set out the future direction of services in the context of
achieving substantial further savings. These have been informed by
comparative benchmarking, both through published data and informal
networks with other comparable authorities, to identify areas of
potential efficiency gains.

2.2

Services have identified savings, in the context of the continuing
budgetary pressures and reduction in available funding. Savings
requiring a policy change have been taken through Panels for Cabinet
decisions throughout 2018, and substantial efficiency savings have

Agenda Pack Page 13

11

been identified. Savings have also been achieved by extending the
reduction of general non-pay inflation to zero. Whilst this is mitigated
to some extent by excluding exceptional inflation areas it will require
services to manage the impact during 2019/20.
Provisional Settlement
2.1

The Government announced the provisional Local Government
Finance Settlement for 2019/20 on 13 December 2018, following the
announcement of overall spending and funding plans in the
Chancellor's Autumn Budget 2018 on 29 October.

2.2

This was the final year of the Government’s four year settlement offer
for authorities, including Hertfordshire, who submitted an Efficiency
Plan. A number of the reductions to funding were therefore known in
advance when preparing the proposed budget, including an
anticipated reduction of £23.7m in Government grants between
2018/19 and 2019/20.

2.3

This is also the final year of the Adult Social Care precept; for the
current year, no further increase is permitted and the precept flexibility
has been fully taken up in previous years.

2.4

The Autumn Budget gave early notification of some additional funding,
notably the Social Care Grant (£7.1m) and “Winter Pressures” grant
(£4.1m). It should be noted that this funding is one-off and that, in the
absence of the planned green paper on Health and Social care, it is
not clear how government intends the cost pressure arising from the
ongoing pressure in social care demand to be funded.

2.5

The Provisional Settlement subsequently announced the removal of
negative Revenue Support Grant (RSG) using foregone business
rates, with the Total Settlement Funding Assessment (SFA), the
Government’s calculation of need to be met by (previously) RSG and
business rates, still reducing by 12.6% between 2018/19 and 2019/20.

2.6

Notably, all funding announcements were for one year only,
compounding uncertainty on the level of funding to be expected after
April 2020.

2.7

Additionally, the Settlement confirmed referendum threshold for
Council tax increases to be used for 2019/20 as 2.99% (as previously
notified last year).

2.8

The Provisional Settlement also included details of further authorities
selected to pilot 75% business rates retention. The Ministry of
Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) had
approved 10 authorities to pilot the scheme last year, and
Hertfordshire’s application for 2019/20 to be part of the second phase
of the pilot was successful.

Agenda Pack Page 14

12

2.9

Furthermore, the Secretary of State confirmed timelines for changes to
Business Rates Retention, and the implementation of a Fair Funding
Review that will re-assess funding need across all authorities. These
are expected to be introduced in 2020/21, when the current four year
settlement ends. Whilst there may be some transitional protection,
these changes may have a significant impact on funding from 2020/21.
Revenue Budget 2019/20

2.10

The final position will not be confirmed until the Final Settlement
(expected early February 2019) and other late grant announcements,
and until figures are received from Districts for council tax base and
collection fund balances, due to be provided by end January.

2.5

The future position remains challenging: even with the identified savings
and continued year on year increases in council tax and the social care
precept, current projections of pressures and funding require a further
£20.2 million saving to be identified in 2020/21, rising to £44.7 million by
2022/23.

2.6

To help meet these challenging targets, work is in hand to progress
further savings during 2019, for implementation for 2020/21 or sooner
where achievable. It is recognised that savings require significant lead
times, especially where there is service redesign or consultation.

3.

Recommendations

3.1

The Panel is invited to comment to Cabinet on the proposals relating to
the Integrated Plan in respect of Adult Care and Health portfolio.

3.2

The Panel is also asked to identify any issues that it feels that the
Cabinet should consider in finalising the Integrated Plan proposals.

4.
4.1

Background
The integrated plan comprises:
 an overview of the proposed revenue budget and capital
programme, including a review of the budget estimates and
adequacy of reserves (Part A);
 Strategic Direction and Financial Consequences - by portfolio
(Part B);
 the Treasury Management Strategy (Part C)
 the Capital and Asset Management Strategy and Invest to
Transform (part D);
 the Insurance and Risk Strategy (part E)
 an Equalities Impact Assessment (Part F); and
 other technical information and finance summaries (Part G)

Agenda Pack Page 15

13

4.2

Part B of the Integrated Plan has separate sections for each Portfolio.
These contain the strategic direction summary (for Adult Care and
Health portfolio, on p26 of Integrated Plan Pack Part B); revenue
budget information including a schedule of Key Budget Movements that
sets out details of financial pressures and savings (p39); and a
summary of the proposed Capital Programme (p48).

4.3

Key issues for this portfolio include:








The reflection in the IP of cost pressures arising from increasing
demand and greater complexity, including provision for meeting higher
than anticipated demand in 2018/19
Attracting and retaining a care workforce and reflecting the impact of
increases in the National Living Wage
Ensuring sufficient supply of quality care at the right price
The creation of a dedicated Domestic Abuse reserve to provide for
increased investment in this area, ensuring Hertfordshire is well placed
to implement new legislation
Aligning and integrating social care services with the NHS to meet the
holistic needs of each individual
Transforming services to maintain modern, flexible and efficient
provision.

5.

Equality Implications

5.1

When considering proposals placed before Members it is important that
they are fully aware of, and have themselves rigorously considered the
equalities implications of the decision that they are taking.

5.2

Rigorous consideration will ensure that proper appreciation of any
potential impact of that decision on the County Council’s statutory
obligations under the Public Sector Equality Duty. As a minimum this
requires decision makers to read and carefully consider the content of
any Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) produced by officers.

5.3

The Equality Act 2010 requires the Council when exercising its
functions to have due regard to the need to (a) eliminate discrimination,
harassment, victimisation and other conduct prohibited under the Act;
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it and
(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it. The protected
characteristics under the Equality Act 2010 are age; disability; gender
reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; pregnancy and maternity;
race; religion and belief, sex and sexual orientation.

Agenda Pack Page 16

14

5.4

Part F of the Integrated Plan provides an equality impact assessment of
the savings included within the plan and how these are intended to be
mitigated by the service.

Agenda Pack Page 17

15

This page is intentionally left blank

HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
ADULT CARE & HEALTH CABINET PANEL
WEDNESDAY 6 FEBRUARY 2018 at 10:00AM

Agenda Item No.

4

JOINT COMMISSIONING STRATEGY FOR LEARNING DISABILITIES
2019 – 2024 – THE BIG PLAN
Report of the Director of Adult Care Services
Author:- Tracey Brennan, Commissioning Manager – IHCCT
(Tel: 01438 845038)
Executive Member:- Richard Roberts - Executive Member for Adult Care and
Health.

1.

Purpose of report

1.1

The current Joint Commissioning Strategy for Learning Disabilities
ends in March 2019. This report is to inform panel of the new Learning
Disability Joint Commissioning Strategy as of April 2019 – March 2024.

2.

Summary

2.1

The current Joint Commissioning Strategy (2015 – 2018) was
presented to Members at the Adult Care & Health Panel on 7 May
2014. As the current strategy is now at its conclusion, Members are
invited to note and comment on the future strategic direction of
learning disability services for Health and Social Care prior to the
report being presented to Cabinet.

2.2

The report outlines the how the new strategy has been arrived at
through key partnership working with stakeholders including people
with learning disabilities; their families; officers of the council and
clinical commissioning groups (CCG’s), service providers and the wider
community culminating in a 12 week public consultation which ended
on the 9 November 2018.

2.3

Everything within the strategy is in line with council, Adult Care
Services and the CCG’s strategic planning and vision for people with a
learning disability.

3.

Recommendation

Agenda Pack Page 19

16

3.1

Panel is asked to note and comment on the report and request to
Cabinet that Cabinet agree that the council implement the new
Learning Disability Joint Commissioning Strategy April 2019 – March
2024 across Hertfordshire in partnership with both East & North Herts
CCG and Herts Valleys CCG.

3.2

The Panel’s recommendation to Cabinet will be reported orally at the
Cabinet meeting and circulated to Members in the Order of Business
sheet.

4.

Background

4.1

Known as ‘The Big Plan for learning disabilities’, this strategy will be
covering the next 5 years (2019 – 2024). With our commitment to
people and families, the agreement of the council, CCG’s and the
Learning Disability strategy task & finish group (community
commissioning and Adult Disability Services operations group) it was
agreed that a big plan would be written in a high level, easy read
format and a more detailed annual implementation/action plan would
be produced. This decision was also supported by a coproduction
statement and the engagement process launched at May’s Learning
Disability Partnership Board (LDPB).

4.2

The Big Plan had been developed from engagement and feedback to
an outline draft drawn up from a range of activities including three
years data from an annual questionnaire, a stocktake workshop held
with the Learning Disability Partnership Board and various discussion
events.

4.3

Following the engagement process, in line with Hertfordshire Compact
agreement, a 12 week consultation period has now ended and
feedback has been collated.

4.4

The Big Plan is divided into three key outcome areas
•
•
•

Healthy lives
Living locally
Connected lives in the community

4.5

The draft strategy discussed key actions that would need to take place
to achieve outcomes within each of these headings. Whilst the
strategy did not describe existing work plans and priorities, the
principles behind a number of council and CCG key work areas have
been included.

5.

Consultation Feedback

Agenda Pack Page 20

17

5.1

Quantitative:
Total number of responses: 95
It was not anticipated that we would get a huge response to the
consultation given the high level of engagement that took place prior to
the consultation.

71% of people returned their questionnaire by post; 29% on the
council’s portal.
89% of the respondents were white British.
5.2

Qualitative:
Limited changes were required in terms of the strategy and the wording
itself. A glossary of terms and an appendices with links to other
relevant strategies and policies have been developed that will be
included to the strategy.
The significant observation from the feedback provided was the
repeated request to know how to get information about services. This
theme ran consistently throughout all three outcome areas but was
particularly linked to ‘connected lives in the community’. People have
commented on the lack of places to go to find out what activities are
available, where they are based and how information is provided (in an
appropriate format). This raises the need to consider how existing
commissioned services are publicised and runs throughout as a theme
within the action plan.
The action plan, attached as Appendix 2 to this report has been
populated to indicate key activity that will be worked on over the course
of the next year in line with the Strategy. This document will also be put
into easy-read format.

5.3

Alongside sign off from members, the strategy will be presented to
both CCG’s for sign off.

Agenda Pack Page 21

18

6.

Financial Implications

6.1

There are no direct financial implications. Making things better for
people with learning disabilities depends on building self-help and
community support. Using money differently and trying new ways to do
things rather than just spending more money.

6.2

Hertfordshire continues to have joint commissioning/pooled budget
arrangements for learning disabilities.

7.

Risk implications

7.1

The current strategy ends March 2019, as we have joint
commissioning arrangements for Learning Disabilities we require a
strategy to be in place that is in line with these arrangements. The
strategy is high level and in line with council, CCG and national
strategic direction. Strategy actions will be captured in the action plan
that will be reviewed and annually refreshed.

8.

Equalities Implications

8.1

When considering proposals placed before Members it is important
that they are fully aware of, and have themselves rigorously considered
the equalities implications of the decision that they are taking.

8.2

Rigorous consideration will ensure that proper appreciation of any
potential impact of that decision on the County Council’s statutory
obligations under the Public Sector Equality Duty. As a minimum this
requires decision makers to read and carefully consider the content of
any Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) produced by officers.

8.3

The Equality Act 2010 requires the Council when exercising its
functions to have due regard to the need to (a) eliminate discrimination,
harassment, victimisation and other conduct prohibited under the Act;
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it and
(c) foster good relations between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it. The
protected characteristics under the Equality Act 2010 are age; disability;
gender reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; pregnancy and
maternity; race; religion and belief, sex and sexual orientation.

8.4

An Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has been undertaken and this
is annexed at Appendix 3. There are no implications for any persons
with protected characteristics.
Background Information
Adult Care & Health Panel - 7 May 2014

Agenda Pack Page 22

19

https://democracy.hertfordshire.gov.uk/CeListDocuments.aspx?Commi
tteeId=207&MeetingId=310&DF=07%2f05%2f2014&Ver=2

Agenda Pack Page 23

20

This page is intentionally left blank

Item 4 Appendix 1

The Big Plan for adults
with learning disabilities
in Hertfordshire
Hertfordshire’s Learning Disability Joint
Commissioning Strategy 2019 – 2024

flIID

ire
th Hertfordsh
East and Nor
roup
G
g
in
on
si
is
m
Clinical Com

flIID

ys
Herts Valroleup
G
g
in
on
si
is
m
Clinical Com

1 Pack Page 25
Agenda

Contents

..

Page

Introduction

3

About Hertfordshire

6

..............................................................................................................
.

What people said

···~-

8

...........................................................................................................................................
.

Living well in Hertfordshire

11

1. Good lives happen when we are healthy

13

2. Good lives happen when people live locally

16

...................................................................................
.

.

3. Good lives happen when people are
involved in their local communities

19

........................................................................................................................................................................

©7/

.....................
.

Making it happen

22

For more information

23

2 26
Agenda Pack Page

Introduction
The Big Plan for adults
with learn ing disabilitie s
in Hertfordshire
Hlf1l°""""•"~l),Nbl!Y.Jdnl
~5W(MgY20

1t ~ 202i4

-----

,::~

This is the Big Plan for the services
for adults with learning disabilities
in Hertfordshire.

;::-__!:!!!!.
-

BI

'
\

wrn

East and North
Hertfordshire
Clinical Commissioning
Group

Herts Valley ~
Clinical Commissioning
Group

)'

It has been written by Hertfordshire
County Council and the NHS Clinical
Commissioning Groups (CCG).

Hertfordshire County Council and the
CCGs work together to help people
with a learning disability to be:

•

Healthy

•

Independent

•

Involved in their local community

3 Pack Page 27
Agenda

The Big Plan is based on:

•

What the government says we
have to do

•

The work we have been doing
since the last Big Plan

•

What people with a learning
disability have told us

•

What the council and CCGs say we
have to do

4 28
Agenda Pack Page

Our values
When making our plans we want to
make sure that we are:

•
•
•
•
•
•

Giving people the information
they need
Listening to what people say

Giving people the chance to
choose the services that are right
for them

Giving people control over the
services they receive

Fair to everyone

Involving people from all the
different communities in
Hertfordshire
5 Pack Page 29
Agenda

About Hertfordshire
About 1.2 million people live in
Hertfordshire.

We think that over 21,000 people in
Hertfordshire have a learning
disability, but:

•

Local doctors (GPs) only have
about 5,000 people on the register
of people with learning disabilities

The register is a list of people with
learning disabilities.
Having people on a list helps us to
make sure we have the right
services for people.

•

Only about 3,000 adults get help
from social care services

6 30
Agenda Pack Page

We think that over the next 5 years
there will be:

•

More people aged over 18

•

More people aged over 75

•

More people will be wanting help
from Council and Health services

•

The Council and Health services
will have less money to spend

7 Pack Page 31
Agenda

What people said
We have listened to lots of people.

They said:

•

I want to know how to be healthy

•

I would like help to get a job or be
a volunteer

•

I would like to choose where I live
and who I live with

•

I would like things to do in the
evenings and weekends

•

I want people with learning
disabilities to be involved in
training staff

8 32
Agenda Pack Page

•
•
•
•
•
•

I would like to learn how to be
more independent

I want to choose what I do

I want to have support that suits
me at the times that I want

I want to feel safe

I want people in the community to
respect me

I want more friends
9 Pack Page 33
Agenda

•

I want to live close to my family

•

I want more easy read information

•

I want to know where I can get
more easy read information

•

I want people to understand
me better

•

I want better information and help
to ﬁnd out things I can do in my
local community

10 34
Agenda Pack Page

Living well in Hertfordshire
We want to make things better for
people with learning disabilities by:

•

Helping people and families to be
able to do more for themselves

•

Supporting communities to help
local people more

We should look for new ways to
do things and not just spend
more money.

11 Pack Page 35
Agenda

A good life
Having a good life isn’t just
about having paid support and
using services.

Good lives happen when we:
1. Are healthy

2. Live locally

3. Are involved in our
local communities

12 36
Agenda Pack Page

1. Good lives happen when
we are healthy
What we know:

•
•
•
•
•

People who have a learning
disability die on average of 13
years younger than other people
and often have more illnesses
Last year in Hertfordshire
about 7 out of every 10 people
with learning disabilities had a
health check
Last year in Hertfordshire over half
of people with a learning disability
had a ﬂu vaccination

Since 2012 local doctors (GPs)
have added 1,500 people with
learning disabilities to the register
Less people are spending long
periods of time in specialist
learning disability hospitals
and more people are living in
the community
13 Pack Page 37
Agenda

?

•

People don’t always know how to
get information and support to
keep themselves healthy

We will:

•

Help more people to get onto the
GP learning disability register

•

Make sure people know how to get
a yearly health check

•

Look at the quality of people’s
health checks

•

Make sure more people have
ﬂu jabs

14 38
Agenda Pack Page

•
•
•
•
•

Help more people to be
checked for health conditions
such as cancer
Help people get the right support
when they are feeling sad,
unhappy or mentally unwell

Make sure people only spend the
time that they need to get better
when they go into hospital

Make sure people and those that
support them know how to live
healthy life

Make sure people get information
that is right for them

15 Pack Page 39
Agenda

2. Good lives happen when
people live locally
People do better when:

•
•

They choose what they want to do
and where they want to live

They are in control of their lives

•

They live near family and friends
and don’t have to travel too far

•

They know about the different
sorts of housing they can choose

•

They understand where to go to
ﬁnd the information and support
they need

16 40
Agenda Pack Page

We will:

•

Make sure people have
good information about
what is available

•

Make sure people get information
in a way that suits them

•

Work to create more choice about
places to live and ways of living

•

Understand what people need and
want in the future

17 Pack Page 41
Agenda

•
•

The
Future

•
Staff
Training

•

Make sure there is enough local
support for people who live in
Hertfordshire

Help people and their families plan
for the future

Work to create more choice about
different types of support that
people can have

Work to get more staff and make
sure they get the right training for
the people they are working with

18 42
Agenda Pack Page

3. Good lives happen when
people are involved in
their local communities
People do better when:

•

They are supported to manage
their own lives

•

They learn how to become
more independent

•
•

They make their own decisions

The local community is welcoming
to people

19 Pack Page 43
Agenda

People sometimes need more help to
travel around their local community.
People often need different amount of
help at different times of their life.
You don’t need to have a service
to become more independent,
but a service can help you to be
more independent.

We will:

•

Help people know what is in their
community and how to access it

•

Help more people to ﬁnd work and
chances to be a volunteer

•

Create new ways to get support in
the community

20 44
Agenda Pack Page

The
Future

•

Help more people to learn how to
travel by themselves

•

Support people to get where they
need to go

•

Help people to have the right
support to speak up

•

Make sure people get information
that is right for them

•

Helping people and their families
plan for the future

•

Make sure staff understand how to
help people get involved in their
local community
21 Pack Page 45
Agenda

Making it happen
Action
Plan

We will have a separate Action Plan to
make sure the Big Plan happens.

An Action Plan explains all the
different things that need to happen.

Action
Plan

Every year we will work with people
with learning disabilities and families
to look at the Action Plan.

Together we will:

•

Check that the work has
been done

•

Look at what needs to
happen next

22 46
Agenda Pack Page

For more information
If you need more information please
contact us at:

@

Email:
ACSCommissioning.Support@hertfordshire.gov.uk

Telephone: 0300 123 4040

Minicom: 01992 555506

Post:
SFAR 202
Hertfordshire County Council
Farnham House
Six Hills Way
Stevenage
SG1 2FQ
Easy read by easy-read-online.co.uk

23 Pack Page 47
Agenda

This page is intentionally left blank

Item 4 Appendix 2

The Big Plan for Learning Disabilities 2019 - 2024

Year one action plan 2019/20
Big Area
Outcome:

What we want to achieve

1: Being
Healthy

People aged 14yrs + with LD
will be offered good quality LD
Annual Health Checks

Agenda Pack Page 49

How do we know we have
been successful?

Co-Production

Work to Date

(this section will be
completed to show how
we are involving people)

(this section will be completed throughout
2019/2020 to show how far we have got)

75% of people on the LD
register will have had a health
check
Data will indicate reduction in
comorbidities and better
management of long-term
conditions

Informing

All people with a LD will be on
the GP LD register

The Register size will increase

Informing

People with a LD will be offered
health screening and
immunisation in the same way
as the general population

Health Conditions are identified
in line with national targets.
G.P’s target - 65% people with
LD given a flu jab/ spray
Reductions of deaths in line the
LeDeR national findings

Educating

Reminders to stakeholders. Providers
monitored to ensure people are
being supported at their AHC.
Practices encouraged to work
towards receiving a Purple Star
(Funding permitted). ADS S/U
information cross referenced with
G.P QoF registers
Work initiated with children’s health
services – post diagnosis flagging to
GPs
The HLT initiatives to support people
with a LD to understand how to
recognise signs of e.g. breast and
testicular cancer
CLDN’s are supporting the national
Public Health Flu Campaign and
encouraging uptake of the flu jab/
spray
Working with Herts PH
commissioned services to improve
support i.e. sexual health services;
obesity, drug and alcohol etc.
Monitoring and analysis by the
Improving Health Outcomes Group/
Herts SAF group
HPFT’s IAPT services more accessible
by using the Green Light Toolkit.

Educating

Informing

Engaging

Engaging

People with a LD will have
access to appropriate mental

People will feel more supported
in the community; have access

Informing

Timescale –
Review
Activity

Lead

Ongoing

IHCCT/
CLDN/ HLT
HLT

March 2020
March 2019

IHCCT/
CLDN

Ongoing

CCG’s/
IHCCT/ HCT/
0-25 service

Ongoing

HLT/
CLDN/PHE

April 2019

IHCCT/
CLDN’s/
PHE/ CCG’s

June 2019

IHCCT/PH

June 2019

IHOG

Ongoing

HPFT

1

The Big Plan for Learning Disabilities 2019 - 2024
health services in the same way
as the general population

to a range of services and will
not require admission to
specialist LD/MH hospitals
Meet national NHS/ CCG
Targets

Co-design

June 2019

HPFT/IHCCT

Agenda Pack Page 50

Engaging

Transforming Care Programme legacy March 2019
HLT ensure individual’s health issue is
being treated appropriately and
professionals/ clinicians are making
reasonable adjustments for
inpatients and out patients

People with a LD will receive
the right support in hospital

Health care in line with national
targets; demonstrated by an
increase in referrals to the
Health Liaison Team and LD
survey

Engaging

Providers and carers who
support people with a LD will
know what their role is in
helping people to keep healthy

Increase in annual health
checks.
Increase in attendance of
HCPA’s LD health awareness
programme.
Evidence from providers
Improving Health Plans
PAMMs (EoE contract)

New Leaf Recovery College
discussions around accessibility for
people with LD

HPFT/
IHCCT

IHCCT/ ADS/
HPFT

Ongoing

HLT

Educating/informing Roll out of ‘Top to Toe’ folder;
requires further embedding

September
2019

HLT

Educating/Informing HCC website page in development to
direct staff and providers to a point
of reference for health information in
a range of formats.

March 2019

IHCCT/HLT

Educating

Staff are encouraged to attend
training courses about LD health
developed in conjunction with HCPA

Ongoing

HPCA

Monitoring Officers review the
support to people with LD. Where it
is recognised that a provider may
need advice the HLT are contacted to
offer information and guidance.

Ongoing

CCAD/IAC

2

The Big Plan for Learning Disabilities 2019 - 2024
Big Area
Outcome:

What we want to achieve

2: Living
Locally

Agenda Pack Page 51

How do we know we have
been successful?

Co-Production

Work to Date

(this section will be
completed to show how
we are involving people)

(this section will be completed throughout
2019/2020 to show how far we have got)

People will have good
information about housing and
support options in order that
they can plan for the future.

Information about housing and
support will be available in a
number of different formats to
support individuals and
families.

Informing

Paper and web resources will be
developed to inform service users
and families about the new
Supported Living process.

Future accommodation and
support options will be
developed in response to
people’s needs and
preferences.

A wider range of
accommodation and support
will be fully occupied. An
increased number will be in
Supported Living rather than
residential or nursing care.

Engaging

People will have more choice
and control when they are
looking for accommodation and
support.

People surveyed will say they
felt in control of the process to
find a home.

Co-design

We will recruit and develop a
workforce with the right skills
to support people well.

More staff will be recruited and
retained. Staff will be better
trained.

Timescale –
Review
Activity

Lead

Feb 2019

CCAD

March 2019

CCAD,
IACT, & CS

May 2019

CCAD

A housing pathway for adults with
disabilities and/or mental health
issues will be developed by a project
group under the oversight of the
Hertfordshire Adults Supported
Accommodation Board.

Timescales
to be agreed
(project
initiated)

IACT

Supported Living provision will be
Connected Lives focused, good value
and more quickly available.

May 2019

CCAD

HCC/HCPA Workforce Strategy
published Nov 2018.

Ongoing
(2018-21)

WDP

New Academy launch

Jan 2019

WDP

Consideration of a Menu of Options
and/or literature for 0-25 team about
accommodation options and choices
The Framework Agreement will be
live and include a new process to
involve services users in making the
final choice about future
accommodation

Informing

3

The Big Plan for Learning Disabilities 2019 - 2024
Big Area
Outcome:

What we want to achieve

3:
People will have better
Involvement information about what is
in our local
happening in their community.
communities

Agenda Pack Page 52

People will have a choice of
support services that enables
them to access community
activities.

More people will know how to
find work and become a
volunteer

More people will be able to
travel independently or access
the right support to get to
where they need to go

How do we know we have
been successful?

Co-Production

Work to Date

(this section will be
completed to show how
we are involving people)

(this section will be completed throughout
2019/2020 to show how far we have got)

Information about community
activities will be available in a
number of formats for
individuals and families.
People will attend community
activities.

Informing

The Hertfordshire Directory is
currently being developed to provide
better information for everybody.
Community Navigators working with
more people with learning
disabilities.

People with higher support
needs are attending community
groups and activities and
develop real relationships.

Engage

Increased numbers of people
with disabilities will be in
employment.

People are able to go where
they want to go and when the
want to go.
Less people will depend on HCC
coordinated transport

Co-design

Informing

Engaging

Identifying what type of support we
need more or less off.
Short term: Focus on business
development with providers that can
offer what we need more off.
Long term: A framework will be
modelled and go live with variety of
support offers

Timescale –
Review
Activity

Lead

Nov 2018

Web team

TBC

ICC

CCAD
February –
July 2019
July 2019March 2020

Web pages have been developed to
support people finding employment.
Employer engagement.
Community Service provider
engagement to develop employment
and training options.

Oct 2018

Travel training programme
development.
Review of transport offers and
working with community transport
support.

April 2020

CCAD

CCAD

CCAD

4

The Big Plan for Learning Disabilities 2019 - 2024
More people will know how to
get their voice heard and can
seek the right support to speak
up

Agenda Pack Page 53

Glossary
IHCCT
HLT
CLDN
CCG
HCT
PHE
PH
IHOG
HPFT
ADS
CCAD
IACT
WDP
ICC
CS
PAMMS
HCPA
HCC

People surveyed will feel their
voice is heard.

Engaging

User involvement structure review
and refresh

April 2019

CCAD

Integrated Health & Care Commissioning Team
Health Liaison Team
Community Learning Disability Nursing
Clinical Commissioning Group
Hertfordshire NHS Community Trust
Public Health England
Public Health (Hertfordshire County Council)
Improving Health Outcomes Group
Hertfordshire Partnership Foundation Trust
Adult Disability Service
Community Commissioning Adults with Disabilities
Integrated Accommodation Commissioning Team
Workforce Development Partnership
Integrated Community Commissioning
Childrens Services
Provider Assessment & Market Management Solution
Hertfordshire Care Providers Association
Hertfordshire County Council

5

This page is intentionally left blank

Item 4 Appendix 3

1.

Who is completing the EqIA1 and why it is being done

Title of service / proposal / project / strategy /
procurement you are assessing2

Hertfordshire Learning Disability Strategy (The Big Plan) 2019-2024

Names of those involved in completing the EqIA

Tracey Brennan

Head of Service or Business Manager

Simon Pattison

Team/Department

Integrated Health and Care Commissioning Team

Lead officer contact details

tracey.brennan@hertfordshire.gov.uk

Agenda Pack Page 55

The Learning Disability Strategy is an integrated plan between HCC, East and
North Herts CCG and Herts Valley CCG. It aims to provide, in line with the Care
Act 2014, key commitments that will better meet the needs of people with a
learning disability living in Hertfordshire.

Focus of EqIA – what are you assessing?3
What are the aims of the service, proposal, project?
What outcomes do you want to achieve?
What are the reasons for the proposal or change?
Do you need to reference/consider any related
projects?

The current Joint Commissioning Strategy for learning disabilities ends March
2019. As we continue to have joint commissioning/pooled budget arrangements
for learning disabilities in Hertfordshire the next 5 year plan is in development.
Known as ‘The Big Plan for learning disabilities’ it will cover 2019 – 2024. With
our commitment to people and families, the agreement of the ADS Efficiencies
Board (reporting board for this work) and the LD strategy task & finish group
(community commissioning and ADS operations group) it has been agreed that
a high level, easy read big plan will be developed and an annual
implementation/action plan created to reflect the activity taking place to ensure
the outcomes of the strategy are met.
The strategy is for adult’s with a learning disability, but complements the SEND
0-25 years Strategy developed by HCC Children’s Services.
There is a range of national guidance and local strategies that will influence the
delivery of the Implementation Plan. These include:
 The Care Act 2014
49



Adult Care Services 15 year Plan

The key outcomes for people with a learning disability in this strategy are:
 Keeping Healthy
 Living Locally
 Connected Lives in the Community
These have been developed from engagement feedback and an outline draft
drawn up from:

Agenda Pack Page 56









Stakeholders










The annual survey of people with learning disabilities (around 1,000
people have responded over the past 3 years).
2014/2019 Learning Disability Strategy stocktake (September 2018).
Learning Disability Partnership Board work plan, working groups and
local forums.
Local Self-Assessment Framework group’s work and Public Health
report about heath inequalities for people with learning disabilities in
Hertfordshire.
Community engagement events and processes with providers, people
and families Changing Services Together, Community First and
Supported Living Framework development
Connected Lives roll out to teams, commissioning and providers
National and local health and social care policy, strategies, principles
and programmes.
People with a learning disability
Current service providers
New providers
Carers and Service Users (current and future);
Partner organisations (e.g. both Clinical Commissioning Groups, NHS
Trusts, district councils)
Members of local communities
Local elected Members
HCC staff
50

2.
List of data sources used for this EqIA (include relevant national/local data, research, monitoring information,
service user feedback, complaints, audits, consultations, EqIAs from other projects or other local authorities, etc.)
A range of useful local data on our communities can be found on Herts Insight and on the Equalities Hub
Title and brief description

Date

Agenda Pack Page 57

Hertfordshire Market Position Statement

2018

Public Health Briefing

2017

Gaps in data

51

3.

Analysis and assessment: review of information, impact analysis and mitigating actions

Protected
characteristic
group

Agenda Pack Page 58

Age8

What do you know4?
What do people tell you5
In mid-2013, the estimated total population of
Hertfordshire had increased by approximately 24,600
(2.2%) since 2011. The number of people aged 50+
increased by 17,341. The population of Hertfordshire
is growing faster than the England average, with the
greatest rate of projected population growth in the
Welwyn Hatfield area. Increasing growth in the
numbers of older people will place greater demands
on health and care services in all areas of
Hertfordshire.
The number of people known on the LD Register is
approximately 5,000 however this figure cannot be
broken down by age.
Based on data of people with a learning disability
known to social care:
18-64yrs - 2737
65+yrs - 337

What does this mean – what
are the potential impacts of the
proposal(s)6?

It is anticipated that the strategy
will have a positive impact on the
range of ages that are supported,
as the Big Plan’s Implementation
Plan addresses the need to
ensure services reflect the mix of
the community.

What can you do7?

No negative impacts
identified

It is anticipated that given the drive to address health
inequalities, the number of people with LD aging will
increase

52

Protected
characteristic
group

What do you know4?
What do people tell you5

What does this mean – what
are the potential impacts of the
proposal(s)6?

What can you do7?

Research indicates that prevalence of Learning
disabilities amongst the general population is 2%.
Based on this calculation there are approximately
21,000 people with a learning disability.
Of the 21,000 there are approximately 5,000 people
with a learning disability on the G.P LD register (all
age), of which 3,074 are 18+ and known to 0-25/ADS

Agenda Pack Page 59

Disability9

National sources have highlighted the fact that as a
result of advancements in medical interventions, an
increasing number of people with complex needs are
living longer.
Locality breakdown (June 2018):
Broxbourne
Dacorum
East Herts
Hertsmere
N Herts
St Albans
Stevenage
Three Rivers
Watford
Welwyn Hatfield
Total

Gender
reassignment
10

264
428
374
242
341
394
258
196
226
351

The key purpose of the Big Plan
is to ensure appropriate provision
to support people with a learning
disability is in place.
It is therefore anticipated that the
strategy will have a positive
impact on people with disabilities,
as the Implementation Plan
addresses the need to ensure
services reflect the mix of the
community

No negative impacts
identified

3074

No data specific to people with learning disabilities
with this characteristic has been identified.

It is anticipated that the strategy
will have a positive impact on
people with this characteristic, as

No negative impacts
identified
53

Protected
characteristic
group

What do you know4?
What do people tell you5

What does this mean – what
are the potential impacts of the
proposal(s)6?

What can you do7?

the Implementation Plan will
address the need to ensure
services reflect the mix of the
community

Agenda Pack Page 60

Pregnancy
and
maternity11

Race12

No data specific to people with learning disabilities
with this characteristic has been identified

81% of Hertfordshire’s population is White British
which is similar to the England figure, but the
proportions of other ethnic groups vary considerably
between districts and the percentage of Ethnic
Minority individual’s decreases with age.
Of those people with a learning disability known to
services aged 18+, 87% are White British. The
percentage of people from BME groups does not
reflect the Hertfordshire population.

Religion or
belief13

After Christians, Hindu, Muslim and Jewish are the
largest religious groups in Hertfordshire.
No data specific to people with learning disabilities
with this characteristic has been identified

It is anticipated that the strategy
will have a positive impact on
people with this characteristic as
the Implementation will address
the need to ensure services
reflect the mix of the community

It is anticipated that the strategy
will have a positive impact on
people of all races as the
Implementation Plan will ensure
services reflect the mix of the
community

It is anticipated that the strategy
will have a positive impact on
people across all religions and
beliefs, as the Implementation
Plan addresses the need to
ensure services reflect the mix of
the community

No negative impacts
identified

No negative impacts
identified

No negative impacts
identified

54

Protected
characteristic
group

What do you know4?
What do people tell you5

What does this mean – what
are the potential impacts of the
proposal(s)6?

What can you do7?

49% of the Hertfordshire population is male,
compared to 51% female. This differs from the
national position.
There is no variance in gender greater than 1%
across Districts and Boroughs
Sex/Gender14

Agenda Pack Page 61

Sexual
orientation15

Marriage and
civil
partnership16

The prevalence of learning disabilities in relation to
sex/gender indicates 58% are male and 42% are
female. Whilst this gender breakdown is significantly
different from the information about the general
population of Hertfordshire, it is comparable to the
breakdown of gender amongst people with a LD
nationally.

No data specific to people with a learning disability
relevant to this characteristic has been identified.

No data specific to learning disabilities relevant to this
characteristic has been identified.

It is anticipated that the strategy
will have a positive impact to
reflect the gender mix of people
with a learning disability, as the
Implementation Plan addresses
the need to ensure services
reflect the mix of the community

It is anticipated that the strategy
will have a positive impact on
people of all sexual orientations
as the Implementation Plan
addresses the need to ensure
services reflect the mix of the
community
It is anticipated that the strategy
will have a positive impact on
people of any marital status as
the Implementation Plan
addresses the need to ensure
services reflect the mix of the
community

No negative impacts
identified

No negative impacts
identified

No negative impacts
identified

55

Protected
characteristic
group

Agenda Pack Page 62

Carers17

What do you know4?
What do people tell you5

The Census 20111 reported that there were 108,615
carers living in Hertfordshire, equivalent to 9.8% of
the population. Whilst the breakdown of those carers
is not specific to those caring for someone with a
learning disability we know that a significant number
of people with a learning disability live at home and
are cared for by family. It is recognised that many of
these individuals are living with aging parents.

What does this mean – what
are the potential impacts of the
proposal(s)6?

The HCC Carers Strategy has
been recently refreshed to reflect
the Councils ongoing
commitment to improving the
experience of carers in line with
its statutory obligations

What can you do7?

No negative impacts
identified

The Big Plan will have a positive
impact on carers as it will ensure
services reflect the needs of the
people they care for.

56

Opportunity to advance equality of opportunity and/or foster good relations18
People with a learning disability will continue to be engaged through the period of the strategy– e.g. through ACS’s Planning and
Performance Group for Learning Disabilities, Learning Disability Partnership Boards; the Annual Self-assessment Survey and specific
involvement in the evaluation of tenders and the review of strategies/policies, and in the work of organisations commissioned to support
people with a learning disability. This will inform the ongoing development of services.
Conclusion of your analysis and assessment - select one of the outcomes below19 and summarise why you have selected i, ii, iii or iv;
what you think the most important impacts are; and the key actions you will take.
OUTCOME AND NEXT STEPS

Agenda Pack Page 63

i.
-

No equality impacts identified
Ensure that through the activity outlined in the Implementation
Plan, the impact on equality is monitored.

SUMMARY
No potential adverse impacts have been identified. The Learning
Disability Strategy Implementation Plan is designed to improve
equality of access to support and services.

This EqIA has been signed off by:
Head of Service:

Print Name:

Simon Pattison Date: 03.07.2018

Review date: 31.03.2020

57

Agenda Pack Page 64

58

HERTFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL

Agenda Item No.

ADULT CARE AND HEALTH CABINET PANEL
WEDNESDAY 6 FEBRUARY 2019 AT 10:00AM

5

AND
CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE & FAMILIES CABINET PANEL
WEDNESDAY 13 FEBRUARY 2019 AT 10:00AM
PROVISION OF MENTAL HEALTH AND LEARNING DISABILITY
SERVICES FOR HERTFORDSHIRE
Report of the Director of Adult Care Services and the Director of Children’s
Services
Author:-

Anna Hall, Senior Commissioning Manager, Integrated Health
and Care Commissioning Team (Tel: 01438 843043)

Executive Member:-

Richard Roberts, Executive Member for Adult Care
and Health
Teresa Heritage, Executive Member, Children, Young
People & Families

1.
Purpose of report
1.1 To advise Members that it is proposed that the County Council enter into
a five year contract (with the option to extend for a further two years)
with Hertfordshire Partnership University NHS Foundation Trust (HPFT)
from 1st April 2019, for the provision of a range of NHS and social care
services for people with mental ill health and learning disabilities across
Hertfordshire.
1.2 This report is supported by more detailed information which is exempt
under Part I of Schedule 12A to Local Government Act 1972 (as
amended), which is contained in the accompanying Part II report.
2.
Summary
2.1 Hertfordshire Partnership University NHS Foundation Trust (HPFT) has
an existing three year contract signed in April 2016 which is due to end
31 March 2019. This contract is part of the pooled budget and
integrated commissioning arrangements that are managed by the
Integrated Health and Care Commissioning Team (IHCCT) on behalf of
the Council, East and North Herts Clinical Commissioning Group
(ENHCCG), Herts Valleys Clinical Commissioning Group (HVCCG)and

Agenda Pack Page 65

59

Cambridge & Peterborough Clinical Commissioning Group (C&PCCG).
These longstanding partnership arrangements between social care and
the NHS have been in place in various forms for at least the last 15
years.
2.2 The Council is the contract lead for the National Health Service (NHS)
Standard Contract 1 with Hertfordshire Partnership University NHS
Foundation Trust (HPFT) on behalf of the three CCGs.
2.3 The current contract is a ‘block’ contract, with a value of £170.8 million
(2018/19 value). The contributions by the partners are:
 Herts Valleys CCG £73.01million
 East and North Herts CCG £72.82million
 Cambridgeshire and Peterborough CCG (to cover people in Royston)
£1.66million
 The Council £23.34million
2.4 The contract covers adults and children’s services:
For adults the contract covers:
 A range of services for adults with mental health issues, both in the
community and within inpatient settings. These include both health
and social care services:
 Services for people with dementia, including dementia diagnosis and
support services and health inpatient beds.
 Some specialist services for people with learning disabilities, including
a small number of inpatient Assessment and Treatment beds.
For children the contract covers:
 Services for children and young people with mental health issues
(Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services, or CAMHS).
2.5 To give a sense of the scale of the contract:
 As at the end of October 2018 HPFT had 9,565 people open to
mainstream adult mental health services.
 An additional 19,200 people are expected to access psychological
therapies for anxiety and depression through HPFT in 2018/19.
 HPFT provide 360 inpatient beds for adults and older people,
including assessment beds, short term treatment beds and
rehabilitation beds.
 CAMHS services receive around 1,000 new referrals a quarter.
 HPFT employ around 3,300 staff across these services.

The NHS Standard Contract is mandated by NHS England for use by commissioners for all
contracts for healthcare services other than primary care. Where commissioners are placing
new contracts with providers, they must now use this Contract
1

Agenda Pack Page 66

60

3.
Recommendation
3.1 That the Adult Care and Health Cabinet Panel and the Children, Young
People & Families Cabinet Panel recommend to Cabinet the following:
That Cabinet:
(i)

Agree that, subject as mentioned in (ii) below, the Council enter into a
five year contract, with the option to extend for a further two years, with
Hertfordshire Partnership University NHS Foundation Trust from 1 April
2019, for the provision of a range of NHS and social care services for
people with mental ill health and learning disabilities across
Hertfordshire.

(ii)

The Director of Adult Care Services in consultation with Executive
Member for Adult Care Services, the Executive Member for Children,
Young People and Families and the Director of Children’s Services be
authorised to complete the negotiations and finalise the terms of the
contract.

4.
Background
4.1 HPFT has an existing three year contract signed with the
Commissioning Parties in April 2016 which is due to end 31 March 2019.
This contract is part of a number of pooled budget and integrated
commissioning arrangements that are managed by the Integrated Health
and Care Commissioning Team (IHCCT) on behalf of the Council, East
and North Herts CCG, Herts Valleys CCG and Cambridge &
Peterborough Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCG’s)
4.2 The current contract is an integrated (i.e. health and social care) ‘block’
contract which means HPFT receive a fixed amount of funding based on
an agreed level of activity, based on the previous year’s actual activity.
Value for money and quality is tested through scrutiny of activity and
performance against key performance indicators.
4.3 NHS England requires the contract to be signed by the 21March 2019.
To drive the contract negotiations and seek resolution of issues within
the necessary timescales a steering group has been established. This
group comprises director and senior level staff from the across the
commissioning partners with clinical input from CCG Mental Health GP
leads. Sub-groups have been established to take forward elements of
the contract.
4.4 The contract will be an NHS standard contract augmented with Section
75 agreements which allow for:
i.

Joint commissioning and pooled budgets between the Council,
East and North Herts CCG and Herts Valleys CCG to underpin
the joint contract with HPFT.

Agenda Pack Page 67

61

ii.

The Council to delegate social care responsibility to HPFT for
adults with mental ill health.

4.5 The Section 75 arrangements for adult social care responsibilities (under
the Care Act) is being thoroughly reviewed at this time, there is no
specific delegation of children and young peoples’ social care
responsibilities to HPFT at this time.
4.6 The period of the contract has been agreed in principle through
consultation with commissioning partners, service users and carers and
clinical leads and aligns with the Government announcement of the five
year revenue budget settlement for the NHS covering the period from
2019/20 to 2023/24 2.
5.

Examples of recent Key Areas of development

5.1 Whilst there is acknowledgement that there continues to be areas of
challenge with the mental health and learning disability services, HPFT,
as a Care Quality Commission “good” rated Foundation Trust, continues
to work collaboratively with commissioners and other partners across the
health and social care system. Below are some examples of HPFT’s
strong partnership working approach; recognition of areas of good
practice and areas of significant development and improvement made
during the last contract period.
 Successfully bidding for national mental health funding to:
1) Expand existing mental health liaison services, to be available 24
hours a day, 7 days a week in both Watford General Hospital
and the Lister Hospital in Stevenage.
2) Expand perinatal mental health services, in line with Royal
College of Psychiatry recommendations, delivering a service to
5% of women giving birth in Hertfordshire
3) Build a dedicated CAMHS S1363 suite adjacent to HPFT’s Forest
House Adolescent Unit at Kingsley Green, Radlett.
 HPFT service developments have also been recognised at national
level in the 2018 and 2017 Positive Practice in Mental Health
Awards4:
 Local Learning Disability commissioners continue to be impressed
by the high performance of Dove Ward, HPFT’s learning disability
Assessment and Treatment Unit. This has been further evidenced
by feedback received from commissioners and social workers of
2 Approach to planning Letter 16 October 18.pdf
3 S136 is part of the Mental Health Act that allows a police officer to detain a person and take them to a place of
safety for a mental health act assessment. A person can be kept for up to 24 hours. The time can sometimes to be
extended for a further 12 hours.
4 http://positivepracticemh.com/

Agenda Pack Page 68

62





people placed into Hertfordshire from out of area, where formal and
informal comments/compliments have been received praising the
ward. The Community Assessment Treatment Service contributes
to Dove’s success through active community approaches and
gatekeeping that assist admission avoidance.
HPFT have worked with commissioners to redesign the diagnostic
pathway for the dementia Early Memory Diagnosis and Support
Service to provide a one stop clinic for diagnosis combining a nurse
assessment with a consultant diagnostic appointment.
HPFT are collaboratively working with primary care and
commissioners to roll out primary care mental health pilots as a
more effective method of supporting people to access appropriate
mental health support in a more timely way; have a positive impact
on waiting times for secondary mental health services and decrease
rates of people who Do Not Attend appointments.

6.
Key Areas of Review and ambition from 2019
6.1 Children and Adolescent Mental Health Services (CAMHS)
The services HPFT deliver for children and young people with mental
health issues (specialist Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services CAMHS) is one part of the child and adolescent mental health services
system. Four of the twenty three service specifications, which sit under
the HPFT contract, relate to children and adolescent mental health
services. There are other elements to the pathway provided by other
providers – Early Intervention Services (currently Hertfordshire
Community Trust), the Council’s Children Services and a number of
voluntary sector/community providers.
6.2 Adult Services
6.2.1 Nineteen of the twenty three service specifications that relate to adult
or older peoples services have been reviewed and updated for 1 April
2019.
6.2.2 The social care responsibilities for adults will be monitored and
performance addressed through the joint HPFT and Council’s
Partnership Operations Group (POG) established following the last
contracting round5.
6.3 Broadly HPFT are being asked to, over the course of the contract
period, contribute to delivering on the ambitions laid out in the Adult

5

POG meets every 6 weeks, its purpose is to provide improved joint oversight of the integrated social care
arrangements, provide an opportunity and space for both organisations to learn from each other and to support the
delivery of delegated S75 functions.

Agenda Pack Page 69

63

Care Service 3 year plan6 (and updated version thereof) which fits in
with the “15 Year Direction for Adult Social Care”; the CAMHS
transformation plan7 and the mental health and learning disability
priorities set out in the Five Year Forward View and the recently
published NHS Long Term Plan. Illustratively (list not exhaustive) this
includes HPFT being a key partner or leading on delivering the following:
 Support people with mental health and learning disabilities to
connect with their communities and build supportive relationships
 Mental health therapists co-located in primary care
 Expanding Improving Access to Psychological Therapies service
accessibility
 Supporting people to manage their own health and return to
independence following ill health
 Physical health checks for people with severe mental illness
 Sustaining the target of people with dementia receiving a formal
diagnosis
 Children and young people are able to receive NHS funded
community mental health services and eating disorder services in
a timely way
 Support the urgent and emergency care system
 Utilise the potential of technology and innovation
6.4 Headline areas for both adult and children and young people services
identified for improvement through the contract negotiations from 2019
are outlined in Table 1 below (for more detail see section 9
Engagement). The table shows the mechanism through which the
improvements will be reflected in the contract (as the proposed
monitoring route) and broad timescales for implementation. Where
service transformation is likely to take some time these requirements are
detailed in the 2019/20 service development improvement plan and data
quality improvement plans.
Table 1. Headline improvements identified for HPFT delivered CAMHS and adult
services (lists not exhaustive)
Item

Description

Contract / Service
development improvement
plan / data quality
improvement plan

Broad
Timescale

CAMHS

6

Adult Care Services 3 year plan 2018-21
https://hertscc365.sharepoint.com/sites/intranet/Services/ACS/Documents/ACS%203%20year%20plan_single%20p
ages_24.09.2018.pdf#search=15%20year%20plan
7 CAMHS Transformation Plan 2015-2020 (Oct 2018 update)
https://www.enhertsccg.nhs.uk/sites/default/files/20181101%20Hertfordshire%20CAMHS%20Local%20Transformati
on%20Plan%20-%20Refresh%20October%202018%20-%20FINAL.pdf

Agenda Pack Page 70

64

1

Improved accessibility / flexible
appointment times

Service specification and
Service Development
Improvement Plan
Service specification

April 2019 –
April 2020

2

Improved partnership working
information sharing with other
professionals e.g support plan and
support while waiting for appointment
e.g. network meeting
Improved transition from CAMHS to
adult services, with a move towards a
0-25 service

Business and implementation
plan to be submitted –
Service Development
Improvement Plan

April 2020

Trusted assessment from C-CATT into
community CAMHS when appropriate
Adult and Social Care Services

Service specification

April 2019

1

Section 75 agreement

April 2019

Section 75 Agreement

April 2019

Section 75 Agreement

April 201920

3

4

2

3

4

5

6

7

Continued improvements in
Safeguarding practice
Application of the Care Act –
application of law, quality of application
of statutory framework, development of
and alignment with Connected Lives
within HPFT.
Agreement that HPFT will continue to
move the personalisation agenda
forward, aligning with connected lives,
offering, implementing and being
innovative around the integrated
personal commissioning agenda (IPCPersonal social care and personal
health budget integration)
A more robust and shared approach to
secondary commissioning (treatment
placements and accommodation) with
consistent quality monitoring in line
with ACS.
Alignment with Sustainability and
Transformation Partnership (STP)
workstreams and pathways
development as they emerge (e.g.
frailty pathways, care plan approaches)
HPFT Single Point of Access
involvement with any digital technology
pilots / interoperability opportunities (for
example with Integrated Urgent Care
NHS 111)/development initiatives at
STP/regional/national levels and apply
learning as appropriate to local
systems.
Strengthening integration between
HPFT and Hertfordshire’s All Age Drug
and Alcohol Service

April 2019

Service specifications
IPC – Service Development
Improvement Plan and Data
Improvement plan
Section 75 Agreement

April 2019

Service specifications
Service specifications
Change Control Protocol
Contract schedule “Networks
and Interdependencies”
Service Specification,
Service Development
Improvement Plan

Service Specifications

Agenda Pack Page 71

April 2019
Ongoing
through
contract
period
April 2019
Ongoing
through
contract
period

April 2019

65

Common Themes
1

2

3

Improvements to crisis response –
CAMHS - Increasing crisis support
from 9 to 9 seven days a week to 24/7
(additional resource required)
Adults - Crisis Community Remodelling
to provide more Home Resolution
(additional resource required) and
review of Adult Alternatives to
Admission
Increasing capacity across a number of
services areas e.g.:
CAMHS - Community Eating Disorder
Service; Routine Outcome monitoring
Adults - Early Intervention in Psychosis
expansion and NICE compliance data
Improving Discharge planning /
communication (including medication
changes)

Service Development
Improvement Plan

April 201921

Service Specifications,
Data Quality Improvement
Plan
Service Development
Improvement plan

April 201921

Service specifications

April 2019

Service Development
Improvement Plan

2019/20

7.
Governance and Sign off process
7.1 As with the 2016-19 contract negotiation, a contract of this size and
complexity needs to be agreed by the appropriate governance boards of
each commissioning partner. Each CCG has its own governance
structure, and HPFT will also need to take the contract through its formal
decision-making processes.
7.2 Due to the complexity of the contract negotiations a final version of the
contract will not be available by the date of the Cabinet meeting on 18
February 2019. It has been proposed that the final sign off of the terms
of the contract be delegated to the Director of Adult Care Services in
consultation with the Executive Members for Adult Care Services and
Children’s Services, and the Director of Children’s Services.
Key dates for noting:
Item
Herts Valleys CCG Governing Body meeting
East and North Herts CCG Governing Body meeting
Final drafts of service specifications and S.75 agreement
Adult Care and Health Panel
Children Young People and Families Panel
Hertfordshire County Council Cabinet
Schedules and finance negotiations
Final deadline for contract signing and sealing

Deadline
17 January 2019
24 January 2019
End January 2019
6 February 2019
13 February 2019
18 February 2019
Early March 2019
21 March 2019

8.
Financial Implications
8.1 The Steering Group is progressing on the basis that the contract price
will be broadly similar (with a similar level of contribution from each
commissioning partner) as it is currently (2018/19 contract value
£170.8m).

Agenda Pack Page 72

66

8.2 Increases in the contract value relating to health will be met within the
Mental Health Investment Standard growth element of the CCG’s
budgets. Finance directors are discussing the potential financial
implications to the contract value in detail, taking into account the
recently published national expectations on CCGs relating to the Five
Year Forward View and NHS Long Term Plan.
8.3 Specific client group areas (approx. value £/%):
Client Group
Adult mental health
Children & Young
People
Learning disabilities
Older adults
(dementia)
Across client groups

Investment
£111m

% of contract value
(65%)

£12m

(7%)

£9m
£37m

(5%)
(22%)

£1m

(1%)

HCC contribution
Adult Care Services £23.34m
Children’s Services £1.5m

8.4 IHCCT have not, as part of this contract negotiation round, uncovered
any possible unfunded gap with implications for the Council nor is there
likely to be a surplus from this contract renegotiation.
8.5 The final finance envelope will not be known until later in the
negotiations, however it is not anticipated that there will be any increase
in the Council’s contributions over and above the usual annual
discussions around inflation and funding for demography.
9.
Engagement
9.1 As this is a contract negotiation, with no material change to the services
offered or to the integrated nature of the contract, the steering group has
not sought formal public consultation.
9.2 Clinical commissioning leadership has come from the GP leads for
mental health and learning disability in each CCG and wider GP input
engagement has been via the countywide Mental Health GP leads
meetings. Commissioners have attended appropriate locality meetings
with GPs and other stakeholders as required and the HPFT contract
renewal is a standing item on a range of stakeholder meetings.
9.3 Service users and carers from across adult and children services have
been invited to engage with commissioners throughout the course of the
negotiation/service specification review process.
Engagement with Children, young people and their parents and carers
9.3.1 CAMHS service review activities, consultation and strategy mapping
has been undertaken. This has included meetings with service
managers, visits to services, online questionnaires for children, young
people, GPs and other children’s professionals, consultation with HPFT
Youth Council and Carers in Herts parent / carer support group and a

Agenda Pack Page 73

67

review of existing data. As a result the following themes were
identified for improvement: access, communication, needs-led delivery,
support for parents and carers and working in partnership and have
informed the recommendations identified in Table 1.
Engagement with adult service users and their carers
9.3.2 Service users and carers from the Adult Mental Health Planning and
Performance Group requested to review two of the adult service
specifications with commissioners – Adult Community Mental Health
and Adult Inpatient Services. Representatives included members from
Carers in Herts, Viewpoint (mental health and substance misuse
service user group) and the Transgender Implementation Steering
Group. The following themes were identified and have crucially
informed changes to service specifications to ensure: Focus on
physical health needs; Patients have choice and control over any
support or treatment received; care plans and discharge plans are coproduced with the patient their carer/friends/family and wider
community as appropriate; Discharge communication is improved and
co-ordinated with voluntary sector partners to prevent isolation; Skills
and knowledge of people with lived experience are utilised within
services; Better integration between HPFT and Hertfordshire’s All age
Drug and Alcohol Service; Improved crisis response and review of
alternatives to admission.
9.4

Service users and carers are also able to provide anonymous feedback
through a number of routes 1) the NHS Friends and Family Test8 HPFT’s score has remained stable and above average for comparative
trusts at around 85% and 2) HPFT’s “Have Your Say”9 survey, through
which many services users and carers have left many compliments on
HPFT services, some of which are laid out below:
“I feel more positive, connected and confident…”
“Your service is well run- staff are polite and helpful.”
“This service has been so helpful with my daughter; they are very kind
and compassionate.”
“I found the experience very helpful and positive and not too difficult to
cope with…”
“All the staff in Aston Ward were very professional and caring…”
“They are very positive about helping me. I'm happy I have people who
care.” (Forest House Adolescent Unit)

8 The Friends and Family Test (FFT) is an important feedback tool that supports the fundamental principle that
people who use NHS services should have the opportunity to provide feedback on their experience. It asks people if
they would recommend the services they have used and offers a range of responses.
9 https://www.hpft.nhs.uk/service-users/having-your-say/

Agenda Pack Page 74

68

“Everyone is always polite, the building has a great atmosphere, and
coming here has helped me a lot more than other places I've been to.”
(Dacorum Wellbeing)
“I have had excellent care throughout my time with the community
services. Staff were very considerate, attentive and helpful. At a time
where I felt incredibly vulnerable, CP and JG gave me security, support
and hope for my future. I will be forever grateful for their kind,
considerate, and friendly manners” (NW Support and Treatment Team
St Albans).
“Thank you all so much for all the help and support I have received from
all you at ADTU. I started here with a new journey not knowing what
was happening but I leave here with a new outlook on life and many
new experiences. There are no words which will ever say thank you
enough for all you have done for myself and my family, as you have
given them their daughter, wife, sister and mother back do an amazing
job. Thank you. (ADTU West)”
9.5

From all the positive and negative feedback received each quarter,
HPFT pull together an Emotional Word Cloud (see below) showing all
comment emotions - green for positive emotions and red for negative.
The larger the word the more often the word has been mentioned.

10.
10.1

Equalities Implications
When considering proposals placed before Members it is important that
they are fully aware of, and have themselves rigorously considered the
equalities implications of the decision that they are taking.

Agenda Pack Page 75

69

10.2

Rigorous consideration will ensure that proper appreciation of any
potential impact of that decision on the County Council’s statutory
obligations under the Public Sector Equality Duty. As a minimum this
requires decision makers to read and carefully consider the content of
any Equalities Impact Assessment (EqIA) produced by officers.

10.3

The Equality Act 2010 requires the Council when exercising its functions
to have due regard to the need to (a) eliminate discrimination,
harassment, victimisation and other conduct prohibited under the Act;
(b) advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it and (c)
foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it. The protected
characteristics under the Equality Act 2010 are age; disability; gender
reassignment; marriage and civil partnership; pregnancy and maternity;
race; religion and belief, sex and sexual orientation.

10.4

A draft Equality Impact Assessment (EQIA) is attached as Appendix A.
The final EQIA will be circulated with the finalised Cabinet report.
At this time there are no actions requiring mitigation.

Agenda Pack Page 76

70

Appendix A –Equality Impact Assessment – Mental Health and Learning Disability Services (draft)

Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) Template
EqIAs make services better for everyone and support value for money by getting services right first time.
EqIAs enable us to consider all the information about a service, policy or strategy from
an equalities perspective and then create an action plan to get the best outcomes for
staff and service-users 1.They analyse how all our work as a council might impact
differently on different groups protected from discrimination by the Equality Act 20102.
They help us make good decisions and evidence how we have reached them.3

Agenda Pack Page 77

An EqIA needs to be completed as a project starts to identify and consider possible
differential impacts on people and their lives, inform project planning and, where
appropriate, identify mitigating actions. It must be completed before any decisions are
made or policy agreed so that the EqIA informs that decision or policy. It is also a
live document; you should review and update it along with your project plan throughout.

Full guidance notes to help you are embedded in this form – see the End Notes or hover the mouse over the numbered notes.
If your project/proposal relates primarily to staff – e.g. a restructure – there is a specific EqIA template for this here

71

Please share your initial EqIA with the equalities team, equalities@hertfordshire.gov.uk and the final/updated version at the end of the project. Key EqIAs
should be reviewed by the relevant Head of Service. Examples of EqIAs can be seen in the EqIA Library.
You should first consider whether you need to complete this full EqIA – the end-notes may help you and you can get advice from the Equalities Team. If you
do not, you will need to document somewhere – e.g. in a report to departmental management board or Member Panel – your decision not to fully assess the
impact on equality, including the reasons why you reached this decision.
If there is any potential for an impact on service users or staff, you should complete this full EqIA.
1.

Who is completing the EqIA4 and why is it being done?
The purpose of the EQIA is to assess the Hertfordshire Partnership Foundation Trust contract
Renewal 2019 and the impact of change on all characteristics particularly those under The Equality
Act 2010 on all staff, service users and general population.

Names of those involved in completing the EqIA
Head of Service or Business Manager

Robert Coupland, Commissioning Officer, Integrated Health and Care Commissioning Team
(IHCCT)
Simon Pattison, Head of Integrated Health and Care Commissioning Team (IHCCT)

Team/Department

IHCCT

Lead officer contact details

Anna Hall, Senior Commissioning Manager, Mental Health, , Integrated Health and Care
Commissioning Team (IHCCT)
The contract with Hertfordshire Partnership Foundation Trust (HPFT) is due to end on 31 March,
2019.

Agenda Pack Page 78

Title of service / proposal / project / strategy / procurement you are
assessing5

Focus of EqIA – what are you assessing?6
What are the aims of the service, proposal, and project?
What outcomes do you want to achieve?
What are the reasons for the proposal or change?
Do you need to reference/consider any related projects?

The Hertfordshire contract is collaboration between East & North Hertfordshire Clinical
Commissioning Group (ENHCCG), Herts Valleys Clinical Commissioning Group (HVCCG),
Cambridge & Peterborough Clinical Commissioning Group (CPCCG) and Hertfordshire County
Council (HCC).
Negotiations are under way to establish a new contract, commencing 1 April, 2019 for a five year
period.
The HPFT contract covers: Services for children and young people with mental health issues (Child and Adolescent
Mental Health Services)
 Some specialist services for people with learning disabilities, including a small number of
inpatient Assessment and Treatment beds
 A range of services for adults with mental health issues, both in the community and within
inpatient settings. These include both health and social care services. Services for people
with dementia, including dementia diagnosis and support services and health inpatient beds.
The specific service contracts under negotiations’ are listed below:o Adult Community mental health service
72

o

Agenda Pack Page 79

Stakeholders
Who will be affected?
Which protected characteristics (see end-notes 11-20) is it most
relevant to?
Consider the public, service users, partners, staff, Members, etc

o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o
o




















Wellbeing Service delivering Improving Access to Psychological Therapies
(IAPT)
Adult Mental Health Crisis Services
Adult Acute Inpatient Services
Service for People in Later Life and those with Dementia
Secondary Commissioning of Placements
Rapid Assessment, Interface and Discharge (RAID) Service
Rehabilitation Service
First Episode in Psychosis (FEIP)
Targeted Provision for Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services
Tier 3 Provision of Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services
CAMHS Crisis Assessment and Treatment Team (C-CATT) Service
Eating Disorder Provision for Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services
Learning Disability Service at Forest Lane
Specialist Learning Disability Assessment and Treatment Service
Single Point of Access (SPA)
Carers Service
Medicines Management
Mental Health Legislation Department
Continuing Health Care
Integrated Care Teams (ENHCCG only)
Hertfordshire Wellbeing College pilot
Perinatal Mental Health Service

Individuals with mental health issues
Individuals with a learning disability
Children and Adolescents with mental Health issues
HPFT Service Users
Women pre and post-natal
Elderly
Public
Family
Carers
Carers in Herts
Hertfordshire Partnership NHS Foundation Trust Staff
Herts Valley Clinical Commissioning Group (HVCCG)
East & North Clinical Commissioning Group (ENCCG)
Adult Care Services (Hertfordshire County Council)
Children’s Services (Hertfordshire County Council)
GPs
NHS England
Voluntary and third sector organisations
Individuals in the Criminal Justice Services
73

2.
List of data sources used for this EqIA (include relevant national/local data, research, monitoring information, service user feedback, complaints,
audits, consultations, EqIAs from other projects or other local authorities, etc.)
A range of useful local data on our communities can be found on Herts Insight and on the Equalities Hub
Title and brief description
(of data, research or engagement – include hyperlinks if available)

Date

Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) – (fingertips) profile

2016

Projecting Adult Needs and Service Information (PANSI)
Projecting Older People population Information System (POPPI)
Improving Health and Lives (IHAL) – national prevalence data
Office for National Statistics (ONS)
https://www.ons.gov.uk/

Agenda Pack Page 80

2018
2018
2017
2012- 2017

National Health Service England (NHSE)
https://www.england.nhs.uk/

2014

East and North Hertfordshire CCG
Equality and Diversity strategy and Action Plan 2014 - 2017

2014 - 2017

The greenlight toolkit
https://www.ndti.org.uk/uploads/files/Green_Light_Toolkit_22_Nov_2013_final.pdf

2013

A Carers Strategy for Hertfordshire: 2018-21
https://www.hertfordshire.gov.uk/media-library/documents/about-the-council/data-andinformation/hertfordshire-carers-strategy-2015.pdf

2018

In 2009-10, 290 people in the UK had been awarded a Gender Recognition Certificate (GRC).
http://data.gov.uk/dataset/gender_recognition_certificate_statistics

2017

There is no reliable information on how many
people in the UK identify as transgender only those
who have been awarded a Gender recognition
Certificate

Sexual orientation

2014 - 2017

Sexual identity estimates are based on social
survey data from the Annual Population Survey
(APS). The questions collect information on selfperceived sexual identity from the household
population aged 16 and over in the UK.

sexual orientation equalities data
ONS Sexual Identity

Gaps in data
Consider any gaps you need to address and add
any relevant actions to the action plan in Section 4.

Green light Toolkit 2013 (A guide to auditing and
improving mental health services so that they are
effective in supporting people with autism and
people with learning disabilities

74

Sexual Orientation and Gender Identity
A guide for Clinicians working in Children and Young People’s mental health and emotional
wellbeing settings
https://cypiapt.files.wordpress.com/2017/04/so-and-gi-clinicians-guide-03-04-17.pdf

2017
2011 - 2017

The estimated prevalence of mental disorders in
children and young people aged 5 – 16 in 2015
was 14,164. The severe mental illness recorded
prevalence Quality Outcome Framework (QOF) of
practice registers of all ages in the period 20162017 was 9917

Agenda Pack Page 81
75

2015-2017

Agenda Pack Page 82

2015 - 2016

76

Source: Office for National Statistics, 2011 Census, Table KS209EW.
Stated Religion for those living in Hertfordshire at 2011 (%)
Marital and Civil Partnership Status
Hertfordshire

2011

East of England

England

People aged: 16 and over (2011) 892538

4738333

42989620

Single (2011)

289895

1475171

14889928

Married (2011)

445151

2363201

20029369

75744

437738

3857137

22066

120118

1141196

Widowed or surviving partner
from civil partnership (2011)

58326

333409

2971702

In civil partnership (2011)

1356

8696

100288

% Single (2011)

32.48

31.13

34.64

% Married (2011)

49.87

49.87

46.59

8.49

9.24

8.97

2.47

2.54

2.65

% Widowed or surviving partner 6.53
from civil partnership (2011)

7.04

6.91

0.15

0.18

0.23

Divorced or formerly in civil
partnership (2011)
Separated (2011)

Agenda Pack Page 83

% Divorced or formerly in civil
partnership (2011)
% Separated (2011)

% In civil partnership (2011)

The statistics for marriage and civil partnership are
from the 2011 census there is no comparable data
due to this being a new question in the 2011
census.

Herts insight Diversity Profile

77

2011

Source: Office for National Statistics 2011 Census, Table KS209EW
Stated Religion for those living in Hertfordshire at 2011
Herts insight Diversity Profile
Herts insight Diversity Profile
Resident population (males/females) in Hertfordshire
at mid-2017 (latest)
Provided by the Office of National Statistics

2016 - 2017

Agenda Pack Page 84

Age Public Health Profile
Indicator
Percentage of people aged 16-64 in employment
(Persons)
Percentage of people aged 16-64 in employment
(Male)
Percentage of people aged 16-64 in employment
(Female)
% of people aged 40-74 offered an NHS Health Check
who received an NHS Health Check
% of the eligible population aged 40-74 who received
an NHS Health check
% clients aged 18-64 receiving Self Directed Support
% Social Care clients aged 65+ receiving Self Directed
Support
Dementia: QOF prevalence (all ages)
Mixed anxiety and depressive disorder: estimated %
of population aged 16-74
Generalised anxiety disorder: estimated % of
population aged 16-74
Depressive episode: estimated % of population aged
16-74
All phobias: estimated % of population aged 16-74
Obsessive compulsive disorder: estimated % of
population aged 16-74
Panic disorder: estimated % of pop. aged 16-74
Future prevalence of anxiety and depressive disorder:
estimated % of pop. aged 16-74

Period

Herts
Count

Value

2016/17

579,400

78.60%

2016/17

305,800

84.10%

2016/17
2013/14 17/18
2013/14 17/18
2013/14

273,600

73.30%

151,835

51.90%

151,835
6,120

44.70%
40.10%

2013/14
2016/17

9,120
9,098

59.80%
0.70%

2021

90,577

10.46%*

2012

32,058

3.9%*

2012
2012

24,126
14,059

2.97%*
1.73%*

2012
2012

9,509
8,511

1.17%*
1.05%*

2021

90,577

10.46%*

2013 -2017

78

Agenda Pack Page 85

Future prevalence of generalised anxiety disorder:
estimated % of pop. aged 16-74
Future prevalence of depressive episode: estimated %
of pop. aged 16-74
Future prevalence of all phobias: estimated % of pop.
aged 16-74
Future prevalence of obsessive compulsive disorder:
estimated % of pop. aged 16-74
Future prevalence of panic disorder: estimated % of
population aged 16-74
Proportion of supported working age adults with LD
living in accommodation (%)
Dementia: Recorded prevalence (aged 65+)
Rate of newly diagnosed dementia registrations
(Experimental)
Dementia: Crude Recorded Prevalence (aged under
65 years) per 10,000
Dementia: Indirect Age-Standardised Recorded
Prevalence (< 65 years) per 10,000
Dementia (aged under 65 years) as a Proportion of
Total Dementia (all ages) per 100
Dementia: DSR of emergency admissions (aged 65+)
Children in need due to family stress or absent
parenting: rate per 10,000 < 18
% of deaths in usual place of residence among people
aged 65 years and over
Emergency admissions (aged 0-4)
Homeless young people aged 16-24
Elective admissions (rate per 1000 population) aged
under 5 years
Elective admissions (rate per 1000 population) age 14 years
Elective admissions (rate per 1000 population) aged 5
to 9 years
Elective admissions (rate per 1000 population) age
10-14 years
Elective admissions (rate per 1000 population) aged
15-17 years
Elective admissions (rate per 1000 population) age
15-19 years
Emergency admissions (aged 1-4)
A&E attendances (<18)

2021

34,251

4.0%*

2021

25,660

2.96%*

2021

14,737

1.70%*

2021

9,974

1.15%*

2021

9,198

1.06%*

2015/16
Sep-17

2,120
9,048

73.10%
4.41%

2016/17

2,662

12.9

2017

231

2.25

2017

-

2.22

2017
2016/17

231
7,108

2.6
3,307

2017

2,008

75.2

2016
2016/17
2016/17

3,656
9,437
294

46.10%
123
0.61

2016/17

4,499

58.6

2016/17

3,405

55

2016/17

3,512

44.3

2016/17

3,263

47

2016/17

2,078

49.7

2016/17
2016/17
2016/17

3,348
5,088
107,868

49.9
82.2
404
79

3.

Analysis and assessment: review of information, impact analysis and mitigating actions

Protected
characteristic
group

Agenda Pack Page 86

Age11

What do you know7?
What do people tell you8?
Summary of data and feedback about service users and the wider
community/ public





Who uses the service?
Who doesn’t and why?
Feedback/complaints?
Any differences in outcomes? Why?

The population for people of all ages resident in Hertfordshire is
1,180,900.
Isolation Age UK
Approximately 16% of Hertfordshire’s population are aged 65 years
and over (173,915). It is predicted that this will significantly increase
over the next 20 years showing an increase over more than 50% over
the next 20 years. This suggests that there will be significant an
increasing numbers of people using this service in the coming years.
There are higher concentrations of those aged 65/85 years or more in
Dacorum, North Herts, St Albans, Welwyn Hatfield and Three Rivers.
13.1% of Hertfordshire’ older population is considered to be living in
poverty. Districts with higher levels of deprivation are in Broxbourne,
Hertsmere Stevenage, North Hertfordshire and Watford.
Adult Mental Health see age public health figures in section 2
Children and Adolescent Mental Health
see age public health figures in section 2
As well as the projected increase in an ageing population It is also
anticipated that given the various drive to address health inequalities
such as The learning Disability Big Plan, Mental Health Strategy, The
number of people with Learning Disabilities and Mental Health
Disorders will live longer.

What does this mean – what are
the potential impacts of the
proposal(s)9?
- Consider positive and negative
impacts
- On service users / the public
- AND, where relevant, staff*
* if your proposals relate mainly to
a staff restructure or
reorganisation, you should use the
template here

Although the service is obviously
intended to have a positive impact on
all people that use it, we do recognise
likelihood of differential impact on
some groups’ e.g.
Older people being less likely to use
the internet and therefore more likely
to experience social isolation, less
mobile.

What can you do10?
What reasonable mitigations to reduce
or avoid the impact can you propose?
How will you communicate/engage or
provide services differently to create a
‘level playing field’ – e.g. consultation
materials in easy read or hold targeted
engagement events
If there is no current way of
mitigating any negative impacts,
clearly state that here and consider
other actions you could take in the
action plan in section 4.
With regards to this protected
characteristics; there will need to be a
multi-pronged approach i.e. online
presence, outreach services for those
who are unable to get to actual clinics,
access to services at convenient times
to suit people of different ages.
Mitigation;
There is a greater emphasis on social
prescribing wellbeing and community
support the new service specifications
have embedded this in their service
specifications and the
introduction/increase of peer support
workers and community wellbeing
services
community wellbeing/ isolation
HPFT staff will need to be appropriately
trained and be aware of needs of
people and can positively support
Service users appropriately.
All HPFT mandatory training is
monitored by IHCCT also see actions
below (part 4)

80

Protected
characteristic
group

What do you know7?
What do people tell you8?
Summary of data and feedback about service users and the wider
community/ public





Disability12

Who uses the service?
Who doesn’t and why?
Feedback/complaints?
Any differences in outcomes? Why?

Disability and Health in Herts
Learning Disability

Agenda Pack Page 87
Gender
reassignment13

Physical Disability including Sensory Disability

The contract under renewal to Hertfordshire Foundation Trust
provides an array of services in Hertfordshire. These services are
specialised services for adults and children with Mental Health and
Learning\physical Disabilities

The latest (mid-2017) estimate puts the population of Hertfordshire at
578,500 males and 602,500 females.
As at mid-2017, the estimated total population of Hertfordshire had

What does this mean – what are
the potential impacts of the
proposal(s)9?
- Consider positive and negative
impacts
- On service users / the public
- AND, where relevant, staff*
* if your proposals relate mainly to
a staff restructure or
reorganisation, you should use the
template here

According to the Census 2011, there
are around 26,000 people in
Hertfordshire have a learning
disability. Over 50% of these people
were above the age of 45 and 32 %
over 55. It is estimated that the
percentage of people with a learning
disability will grow substantially during
the lifetime of this contract and
therefore work on improving
pathways will need to be monitored.
Rather than anyone being
disadvantaged because of their
disability. HPFT inform us they work
positively with all disabilities,
specifically physical and social
barriers as well as mental
health/learning disabilities. The
contract under negotiation with HPFT
should have a positive impact on
Disabilities.

No differential impact is anticipated to
any individuals. HPFT services are
equally accessible to all.
Hertfordshire Foundation NHS Trust

What can you do10?
What reasonable mitigations to reduce
or avoid the impact can you propose?
How will you communicate/engage or
provide services differently to create a
‘level playing field’ – e.g. consultation
materials in easy read or hold targeted
engagement events
If there is no current way of
mitigating any negative impacts,
clearly state that here and consider
other actions you could take in the
action plan in section 4.
We will ensure that the service
understands needs of people with
disabilities and has appropriate care
paths
We will ensure that services are
accessible for wheelchair users and
any online offer will be offered to meet
needs of those with sensory needs
HPFT staff will have appropriate
training in Equality and positively
support applications for staff from all
disabilities doing their best to provide a
‘level playing field’. Attitudes stigma
physical and social barriers to services
will be at the forefront of all
negotiations. The already in use Green
light toolkit will be monitored regularly to
ensure it is been effectively used.
Green Light Toolkit
This is a guide to auditing and
improving mental health services so
that they are effective in supporting
people with autism and people with
learning disability.
HPFT staff will have appropriate
training in Equality and recruit staff from
diverse backgrounds which will assist
them to effectively work with the public
81

Protected
characteristic
group

What do you know7?
What do people tell you8?
Summary of data and feedback about service users and the wider
community/ public





Who uses the service?
Who doesn’t and why?
Feedback/complaints?
Any differences in outcomes? Why?

Agenda Pack Page 88

increased by approximately 64,900 (5.8%) since the 2011 Census.
In 2009-10, 290 people in the UK had been awarded a Gender
Recognition Certificate (GRC).
http://data.gov.uk/dataset/gender_recognition_certificate_statistics
However, there is no reliable information on how many people in the
UK identify as transgender.
Some estimates suggest gender reassignment rate to be 20 per
100,000 people in the UK. This would suggest there are around
10,000, of which 6,000 would have gone through transition. Year on
year the number of people presenting increases by 15%, if this trend
continues it means the number of trans gendered people could
double every five years. The median age of those presenting for
treatment is 42 years old. These estimates do not take into account
those who transition through private medical care - this is based
solely on NHS statistics.
If the rate of 20 per 100,000 people estimated for the UK is applied to
Hertfordshire for those aged 15 or over, it would mean there were
around 183 transgender people in the County.

What does this mean – what are
the potential impacts of the
proposal(s)9?
- Consider positive and negative
impacts
- On service users / the public
- AND, where relevant, staff*
* if your proposals relate mainly to
a staff restructure or
reorganisation, you should use the
template here

provides services which are
accessible to individuals irrespective
of their gender identity.
There are concerns that current
statistics do not capture the true
numbers of individuals with protected
characteristics especially relating to
Gender Identity as well as a lack of
trust in speaking about their mental
Health.
http://www.queerfutures.co.uk/wpcontent/uploads/2016/06/QueerFutures-Summary-Report.pdf
.

What can you do10?
What reasonable mitigations to reduce
or avoid the impact can you propose?
How will you communicate/engage or
provide services differently to create a
‘level playing field’ – e.g. consultation
materials in easy read or hold targeted
engagement events
If there is no current way of
mitigating any negative impacts,
clearly state that here and consider
other actions you could take in the
action plan in section 4.
and service users
East and North Hertfordshire Clinical
Commissioning Group are members of
the Trans Implementation Steering
Group and are committed to supporting
the recommendations made in the
Hertfordshire Transgender Health
Needs Assessment conducted by
Viewpoint in 2013.
The CCG is working closely with the
Implementation Steering Group to drive
forward further actions in supporting
Trans, and Transgender communities
in getting access to the best possible
and appropriate health services when
needed.
“Monitoring sexual orientation and
gender identity helps your service to
understand who is and who is not using
your service. However, it can be really
difficult for some young people to share
information about their sexual
orientation or gender identity due to
concerns confidentiality or Re negative
consequences. As well as this, some
monitoring forms might not give options
that the young person feels comfortable
82

Protected
characteristic
group

What do you know7?
What do people tell you8?
Summary of data and feedback about service users and the wider
community/ public





Agenda Pack Page 89

Pregnancy and
maternity14

Race15

Who uses the service?
Who doesn’t and why?
Feedback/complaints?
Any differences in outcomes? Why?

What does this mean – what are
the potential impacts of the
proposal(s)9?
- Consider positive and negative
impacts
- On service users / the public
- AND, where relevant, staff*
* if your proposals relate mainly to
a staff restructure or
reorganisation, you should use the
template here

What can you do10?
What reasonable mitigations to reduce
or avoid the impact can you propose?
How will you communicate/engage or
provide services differently to create a
‘level playing field’ – e.g. consultation
materials in easy read or hold targeted
engagement events
If there is no current way of
mitigating any negative impacts,
clearly state that here and consider
other actions you could take in the
action plan in section 4.
with. It is important to consider
these potential issues when developing
monitoring forms and when they are
given to young people to fill out.”
https://cypiapt.files.wordpress.com/201
7/04/so-and-gi-clinicians-guide-03-0417.pdf
See prioritization action plan in section
4 below.

fingertips.phe.org.uk/profilegroup/
mental-health/profile/perinatal-mental-health
There is a potential for women who become pregnant during a spell
of mental ill health to become more unwell; to stop taking medication
(for fear of harming the foetus); or to dis-engage. There is also
potential for a lack of join-up between mental health services and
ante-natal services, so that needs are not understood or met.
81% of Hertfordshire’s population is White British which is similar to
England, but the proportions of other ethnic groups vary considerably
between districts. This has increased by 8% since 2001.
Watford, Welwyn Hatfield and Hertsmere have some of the highest
proportions of people from other ethnic groups; there are also
relatively high proportions of “White Other” in Three Rivers,
Stevenage and Broxbourne (i.e. non UK European Union).
In Broxbourne, Stevenage, Welwyn Hatfield, Hertsmere and Watford,
over 2% of the population is African;
St. Albans district has the highest proportion of Bangladeshi people in
Hertfordshire (1.9%).
88% of hate crime in Hertfordshire is racial. On average 95 such

The Perinatal Mental Health Service
will have a positive impact on the
targeted group (pre and post-natal
women)

Hertfordshire Foundation NHS Trust
provides services which are
accessible to individuals from all
races and ethnicities. However HPFT
have promoted in their IAPT services
through campaigns and publicity to
be an all welcoming service. Other
services do not run the same
campaigns.

The service is a new service and will be
monitored and reviewed.
(See prioritised action plan below in
section 4).
HPFT staff will have appropriate
training in Equality and staffs are
recruited from diverse backgrounds
which will assist them to effectively
work with the public and service users
from all ethnicities.
Promote an increase in self-referrals
into the services, through targeted
publicity campaigns and ensure that the
process is welcoming and sensitive to
the characteristics of all types of people
who require the service. This will
include promotion to a range of cohorts
83

Protected
characteristic
group

What do you know7?
What do people tell you8?
Summary of data and feedback about service users and the wider
community/ public





Agenda Pack Page 90
Religion or belief
16

Who uses the service?
Who doesn’t and why?
Feedback/complaints?
Any differences in outcomes? Why?

What does this mean – what are
the potential impacts of the
proposal(s)9?
- Consider positive and negative
impacts
- On service users / the public
- AND, where relevant, staff*
* if your proposals relate mainly to
a staff restructure or
reorganisation, you should use the
template here

crimes are committed in Hertfordshire each month with the highest
district rate being in Watford (17.5per month)
Almost 150,000 people in Hertfordshire (13%) were born outside of
the UK, with the highest proportions being in Watford (25%), Welwyn
Hatfield (17%) and Hertsmere (17%). Language The top three
languages in spoken in Hertfordshire are English, Urdu and Polish.

What can you do10?
What reasonable mitigations to reduce
or avoid the impact can you propose?
How will you communicate/engage or
provide services differently to create a
‘level playing field’ – e.g. consultation
materials in easy read or hold targeted
engagement events
If there is no current way of
mitigating any negative impacts,
clearly state that here and consider
other actions you could take in the
action plan in section 4.
including people with Learning
Disabilities and /or Autism, Long Term
Condition and BME communities.
(See prioritised action plan in section 4
below)
We will also ensure that services are
available in different languages and
formats to meet needs of those who
need it

According to the information available from Census 2011(see Above),
Hertfordshire’s religious community is composed of 58.25% as
Christian, 2.75% as Muslim 1.93% as Hindu, 1.91% as Jewish, 0.45%
as Sikh and 0.45% as other, 26.53% of the population in
Hertfordshire said they did not have a religion and a further 7.23%
preferred not to say.
The fact that 7.23% of the population of Hertfordshire preferred not to
say does not help to reflect an accurate portrayal of peoples
beliefs/religions (see prioritised Action plan in section 4 below)

HPFT services are equally accessible
to any individuals who either follow a
religion or who do not.

HPFT staff will have appropriate
training in Equality and staffs are
recruited from diverse backgrounds
which will assist them to effectively
work with the public and service users.
IHCCT monitor all HPFT mandatory
training.
Promote an increase in self-referrals
into the services, through targeted
publicity campaigns and ensure that the
process is welcoming and sensitive to
the characteristics of all types of people
who require the service. This will
include promotion to a range of cohorts
including people with Learning
Disabilities and /or Autism, Long Term
84

Protected
characteristic
group

What do you know7?
What do people tell you8?
Summary of data and feedback about service users and the wider
community/ public





Who uses the service?
Who doesn’t and why?
Feedback/complaints?
Any differences in outcomes? Why?

What does this mean – what are
the potential impacts of the
proposal(s)9?
- Consider positive and negative
impacts
- On service users / the public
- AND, where relevant, staff*
* if your proposals relate mainly to
a staff restructure or
reorganisation, you should use the
template here

What can you do10?
What reasonable mitigations to reduce
or avoid the impact can you propose?
How will you communicate/engage or
provide services differently to create a
‘level playing field’ – e.g. consultation
materials in easy read or hold targeted
engagement events
If there is no current way of
mitigating any negative impacts,
clearly state that here and consider
other actions you could take in the
action plan in section 4.
Condition and BME communities.
(See prioritised action plan in section 4
below)

Agenda Pack Page 91

Sex/Gender17

Sexual orientation
18

The population for people of all ages resident in Hertfordshire is
1,180,900.
There are 578,500 Males and 602,500 Females.
There are 24,000 more females living in the county than males.
Hertfordshire population is 51.02% Females and 48.97% Males.

The contract under renewal to
Hertfordshire Foundation Trust
provides an array of services which
are accessible to individuals of all
genders. Although some services are
specialised and gender specific such
as the Perinatal Mental Health
Service, no differential impact is
anticipated.

HPFT staff will have appropriate
training in Equality and staffs are
recruited from diverse backgrounds
which will assist them to effectively
work with the public and service users.
IHCCT will monitor all HPFT mandatory
Training
Ensure that any new service continues
to robustly assess the accommodation
preferences for males and females to
mitigate against any known or potential
risk factors.
See prioritised action plan in section 4
below

The contract under renewal to
Hertfordshire Foundation Trust
provides services which are
accessible to all people irrespective
of their sexual orientation.

HPFT staff will have appropriate
training in Equalities and staffs are from
diverse backgrounds which will assist
them to effectively work with the public
and service users.

Through Stakeholder consultation it
has been noted that individuals from
the LGBTQ community do not feel
confident (especially in an inpatient,
hospital environment) to approach

The relevant CCG/s will monitor and
review service quality in respect of
Equality

Men and women may have certain accommodation requirements and
preferences that need to be considered particularly in relation to
inpatient bed accommodation and assessing the appropriateness and
any risk factors around shared communal areas
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/culturalidentit
y/sexuality/bulletins/sexualidentityuk/2016
Sexual identity \ umbrella
In 2016, estimates from the Annual Population Survey (APS) showed
that 93.4% of the UK population identified as heterosexual or straight
and 2.0% of the population identified themselves as lesbian, gay or
bisexual (LGB).
This comprised of:1.2% identifying as gay or lesbian

85

Protected
characteristic
group

What do you know7?
What do people tell you8?
Summary of data and feedback about service users and the wider
community/ public





Agenda Pack Page 92

Marriage and civil
partnership19

Carers20

Who uses the service?
Who doesn’t and why?
Feedback/complaints?
Any differences in outcomes? Why?

What does this mean – what are
the potential impacts of the
proposal(s)9?
- Consider positive and negative
impacts
- On service users / the public
- AND, where relevant, staff*
* if your proposals relate mainly to
a staff restructure or
reorganisation, you should use the
template here

What can you do10?
What reasonable mitigations to reduce
or avoid the impact can you propose?
How will you communicate/engage or
provide services differently to create a
‘level playing field’ – e.g. consultation
materials in easy read or hold targeted
engagement events
If there is no current way of
mitigating any negative impacts,
clearly state that here and consider
other actions you could take in the
action plan in section 4.
(See prioritization action plan Part 4
below)

0.8% identifying as bisexual
4.1% refused, or did not know how to identify themselves.
0.5% of the population identified themselves as “Other”, which means
that they did not consider themselves to fit into the heterosexual or
straight, bisexual, gay or lesbian categories. A further

staff for fear of not been understood
and demeaned.

The data shows that 289,895 people were single 445,151 were
married 75,744 divorced or formerly in a civil partnership, 22,066
separated, 58,326 are widowed or the surviving partner from a civil
partnership and 1,356 are in a civil partnership. There is no
significant difference between these figures and those the east of
England and England although the percentage for civil partnerships in
Hertfordshire is 0.15 % for the East of England and England it is
0.18% and 0.23% respectively which indicates there are significantly
(>5%) less people in civil partnerships in Hertfordshire in comparison
to statistics for England
The Census 20111 reported that there were 108,615 carers living in
Hertfordshire, equivalent to 9.8% of the population.

The contract under renewal to
Hertfordshire Foundation Trust
provides services which are
accessible to all irrespective of
Marriage or Civil partnership status.
No differential impact is anticipated.

HPFT staff will have appropriate
training in Equalities and staffs are
recruited from diverse backgrounds
which will assist them to effectively
work with the public and service users.
IHCCT will monitor all HPFT mandatory
training

A positive impact is anticipated.

HPFT staff will have appropriate
training in Equalities and staffs are
recruited from diverse backgrounds
which will assist them to effectively
work with the public and service users.

A Carers Strategy for Hertfordshire:
2018-21 details that Carers should be
able to:
 Carry on caring if they want
to.
 Get good quality information
and advice when they need
it.
 Be recognised, feel

The outcomes mentioned under the
Carers Strategy for Hertfordshire 2018 21 along with the Wellbeing Principle
within the Care Act 2014 are the
outcomes that HPFT must seek to

86

Protected
characteristic
group

What do you know7?
What do people tell you8?
Summary of data and feedback about service users and the wider
community/ public





Who uses the service?
Who doesn’t and why?
Feedback/complaints?
Any differences in outcomes? Why?

Agenda Pack Page 93
Other relevant
groups21
Consider if there is
a potential impact
(positive or
negative) on areas
such as health and
wellbeing, crime
and disorder.

What does this mean – what are
the potential impacts of the
proposal(s)9?
- Consider positive and negative
impacts
- On service users / the public
- AND, where relevant, staff*
* if your proposals relate mainly to
a staff restructure or
reorganisation, you should use the
template here







All the information above in Section 2 and Section 3 demonstrates
that people with mental health and learning disability needs are
disadvantaged and are vulnerable groups (i.e. are often on low
incomes; have poor physical health outcomes, low employment
prospects, suffer stigma, social exclusion), in addition to protected
characteristics

respected and heard as
carers and partners in care
and experts in the needs of
the person they care for.
Have a life outside of and
after caring, including
working or volunteering if
they want to & being able to
fully access their local
community and local
services.
Stay mentally & physically fit
and healthy
Be safe
Access full benefits
entitlements and financial
advice.
Receive consistent joined up
services

The HPFT contract under renewal
negotiations provides specialised
services which should have a positive
impact on these vulnerable and
disadvantaged groups.
To negate any negative impact it is
necessary to have a robust
safeguarding policy in place.
.

What can you do10?
What reasonable mitigations to reduce
or avoid the impact can you propose?
How will you communicate/engage or
provide services differently to create a
‘level playing field’ – e.g. consultation
materials in easy read or hold targeted
engagement events
If there is no current way of
mitigating any negative impacts,
clearly state that here and consider
other actions you could take in the
action plan in section 4.
achieve with each carer they support,
based on an individual and
personalised assessment of each
carers particular needs and wishes.

HPFT staff will have the appropriate
training in Equalities and positively
support applications for recruiting staff
from a diverse population and from all
disabilities doing their best to provide a
‘level playing field’.
Mitigations;
The renegotiated service specifications
will continue to be delivered by the
same provider currently delivering the
87

Protected
characteristic
group

What do you know7?
What do people tell you8?
Summary of data and feedback about service users and the wider
community/ public





Who uses the service?
Who doesn’t and why?
Feedback/complaints?
Any differences in outcomes? Why?

What does this mean – what are
the potential impacts of the
proposal(s)9?
- Consider positive and negative
impacts
- On service users / the public
- AND, where relevant, staff*
* if your proposals relate mainly to
a staff restructure or
reorganisation, you should use the
template here

What can you do10?
What reasonable mitigations to reduce
or avoid the impact can you propose?

Agenda Pack Page 94

How will you communicate/engage or
provide services differently to create a
‘level playing field’ – e.g. consultation
materials in easy read or hold targeted
engagement events
If there is no current way of
mitigating any negative impacts,
clearly state that here and consider
other actions you could take in the
action plan in section 4.
service. The provider will follow the
current safeguarding processes that
are already in place for the current
services. These are aligned to ENCCG,
HVCCG and the local authority.
The IHCCT recognise the vulnerability
of the above groups and has a robust
safeguarding policy in place
The CCGs (HV, ENH, C&P) will seek
assurance from HPFT by a broad range
of quality monitoring mechanisms
drawing from qualitative and
quantitative data including:
 The completion of the annual SelfAssessment Assurance
Framework.
 Single Oversight Framework
 Quality monitoring/site visits.
 Individual development work with
HPFT and by attending a range of
HPFT meetings, regional forums,
steering groups and public safety
initiatives (Prevent, MAPPA and
MARAC) in the local area.
http://www.enhertsccg.nhs.uk/sites/
default/files/documents/Mar2016/S
afegaurding-Adults-Policy-v1FINAL.pdf
Mitigations:
88

Protected
characteristic
group

What do you know7?
What do people tell you8?
Summary of data and feedback about service users and the wider
community/ public





Who uses the service?
Who doesn’t and why?
Feedback/complaints?
Any differences in outcomes? Why?

What does this mean – what are
the potential impacts of the
proposal(s)9?
- Consider positive and negative
impacts
- On service users / the public
- AND, where relevant, staff*
* if your proposals relate mainly to
a staff restructure or
reorganisation, you should use the
template here

What can you do10?
What reasonable mitigations to reduce
or avoid the impact can you propose?

Agenda Pack Page 95

How will you communicate/engage or
provide services differently to create a
‘level playing field’ – e.g. consultation
materials in easy read or hold targeted
engagement events
If there is no current way of
mitigating any negative impacts,
clearly state that here and consider
other actions you could take in the
action plan in section 4.
Through clinical benchmarking and
learning from good practice elsewhere
across the UK, Hertfordshire continually
reviews, discusses and re-specifies the
mental health and learning disability
services (at least annually). This
ensures that services are develop to
provide a responsive service that meets
local needs, reduces pressure on wider
health and social care systems and
meets national guidance.
See Prioritised Action plan (Part 4)
below;

Opportunity to advance equality of opportunity and/or foster good relations22
As part of the contract negotiations advancing equality and promoting good relations feedback and meaningful involvement from service users’ stakeholders and HPFT will be
sought and were possible Service Specifications will be co-produced with service users, carers and relevant representative groups.
Conclusion of your analysis and assessment - select one of the outcomes below23 and summarise why you have selected i, ii, iii or iv; what you think the most important
impacts are; and the key actions you will take.
OUTCOME AND NEXT STEPS
i.
-

SUMMARY

No equality impacts identified
No major change required to proposal

89

ii. Minimal equality impacts identified
- Adverse impacts have been identified, but have been objectively justified
(provided you do not unlawfully discriminate)
- Ensure decision makers consider the cumulative effect of how a number of
decisions impact on equality
- No major change required to proposal

The Hertfordshire Foundation Trust contract renewal will encompass the interest and
equalities of all the above groups with protected characteristics this will be a
fundamental criterion to all Service specification contract renewal negotiations
However some adverse impacts have been identified and are addressed in the action
plan below

Agenda Pack Page 96

Mitigation
The Integrated Health and Care Commissioning Team (IHCCT) commissions the
mental health and learning disability service on behalf of the health and social care
commissioning parties. IHCCT have oversight on the management of the HPFT
contract and ensuring that quality and performance issues are identified and
appropriate action is taken promptly. IHCCT ensure HPFT deliver key development
elements of the contract set out in SDIP, DQIP, CQUINs and change control protocol.
Improving performance and finance data available from HPFT to make this more
useful to commissioners evidenced by the completion of quality review and contract
review meetings.
It is expected that all staff will have received training in safeguarding and have up to
date and appropriate policies in Safeguarding, Whistleblowing and Complaints. These
will be checked through monitoring visits by checking training matrix’s and policies
and where these are not in place providers will be expected to make the required
changes, through an action plan which will be followed up on through a follow up
monitoring visit.
iii. Potential equality impacts identified
- Take ‘mitigating action’ to change the original policy/proposal, remove barriers
or better advance equality
- Set out clear actions in the action plan in section 4.
iv. Major equality impacts identified
- The adverse effects are not justified, cannot be mitigated or show unlawful
discrimination
- You must stop and remove the policy
[you should consult with Legal Services]
- Ensure decision makers understand the equality impact

YOU SHOULD INCLUDE THE SUMMARY ANALYSIS ABOVE IN THE ‘Equalities Implications’ SECTION OF ANY REPORT(S) THAT GO TO DEPT. MANAGEMENT
BOARDS / MEMBER PANELS / CABINET, AS WELL AS APPENDING A COPY OF THE EqIA

4.

Prioritised Action Plan24
90

Impact identified and
group(s) affected

Action planned
Include actions relating to:
• mitigation measures
• getting further research
• getting further data/consultation

Expected outcome

Measure of
success

Agenda Pack Page 97

NB: These actions must now be transferred to service or business plans and monitored/reviewed to ensure they achieve the outcomes identified.
HPFT data not reflective of
To Include the option to use own term to describe own
Accurate data
Fewer percentage
LGBTQ community
gender identity on monitoring forms’. Include pronouns ‘he’,
of responses
‘she’, ‘they’, and ‘ze
saying other,
preferred not to
say.
https://cypiapt.files.wordpress.com/2017/04/so-and-giclinicians-guide-03-04-17.pdf’
Greater percentage
of responses to
identifying specific
sexual orientation
gender.
LGBTQ not confident in
Trained Staff and volunteers (Trained in working with
Identified Staff having sensitive
Reduction in selfengaging with HPFT staff
LGBTQ) staff to wear Rainbow Lanyards
conversations with individuals from harm and suicide
a LGBTQ background
amongst LGBTQ
To ensure that HPFT are clear about the workforce
communities
development processes required to ensure that all their staff
are skilled, knowledgeable and competent in a range of
areas of inequality not just those with protected
characteristics but also those identified in this document as
other relevant groups to enable and ascertain a good
understanding as to individual needs.
Number of BAME in services
Promote an increase in self-referrals into the services,
More service users from BAME
Monitoring forms
not reflective of increase in
through targeted publicity campaigns and ensure that the
showing an
diverse population
process is welcoming and sensitive to the characteristics of
increase of people
all types of people who require the service.
identifying BAME
Monitoring data is not accurate Review monitoring data to be more user friendly, look at
Greater compliance and a more
Accurate data
and does not reflect all the
national and local comparisons
accurate reflection of the
reflective of the
Such as https://cypiapt.files.wordpress.com/2017/04/so-and- individuals protected
identified protected
diverse population
gi-clinicians-guide-03-04-17.pdf’
characteristics and other
characteristics
of Hertfordshire
vulnerable groups mentioned
Which identifies that individuals might be happier to fill out a
monitoring form if:
above
• They know it is confidential and anonymous
• They know why it is being asked
• They feel they are in a friendly and inclusive
environment
• They have the privacy they want to fill out
the form
• They know it is optional

Lead officer and
timeframe

IHCCT
April 2019

IHCCT
April 2019

IHCCT
On going
IHCCT

91

• There is a broad range of response options
• Staff use the opportunity for a supportive
conversation
Gaps in data and monitoring
for new developing services
such as Perinatal service
Staff \service not clear

To ensure that gaps in current data recording are included
in the new specifications for the contract service
specifications and the need for regular monitoring for
service development where appropriate especially new
services such as Perinatal

Agenda Pack Page 98

Appropriate monitoring and
reviewing to be covered in contract
service specifications

Greater data base
better service
development

IHCCT

Better service provision, continued
improvement

Measured through
monitoring KPI’s ,
quality and
development
improvement plans

IHCCT

92

ALL Groups

Ensure all existing and new services provided in the HPFT
Contract are accessible to all and no group is marginalised

To ensure that HPFT are clear
about the workforce development
processes required to ensure that
all their staff are skilled,
knowledgeable and competent in a
range of areas of inequality not
just those with protected
characteristics but also those
identified in this document as
other relevant groups to enable
and ascertain a good
understanding as to individual
needs.

Information
available for all
groups

IHCCT

Agenda Pack Page 99

HPFT to make use of existing
translation, interpretation and BSL
services
As a matter of course produce,
easy read and large print versions
of all key leaflets and web sections
Promote accessible information
and advice routes to target groups
Provide simple guidance to explain
the information people may
receive from frontline teams
(letters, assessments, care plans)
and where they can find further
sources of support.
Ensure all information and advice
starts with what people need and
want by engaging with people and
co-producing material where
possible
Promote the NHS Accessible
Information Standard and review
compliance

This EqIA has been signed off by: Robert Coupland, Commissioning Officer, Integrated Health and Care Commissioning Team
Lead Equality Impact Assessment officer:
Head of Service or Business Manager:

Simon Pattison

Date:
Date:
93

Review date:
Please now send the completed EqIA to equalities@hertfordshire.gov.uk
Please also ensure that the EqIA is referenced in and included as an appendix to reports to Management Boards Cabinet Panels and Cabinet so that
decision makers can consider equality impacts before making decisions.

Agenda Pack Page 100
94

Guidance end-notes

The following principles explain what we must do to fulfil our duties under the Equality Act when considering the effect of existing and new policies/ practices/services on equality. They must all be met or the EqIA (and any
decision based on it) may be open to challenge:

1







Knowledge: everyone working for the council must be aware of our equality duties and apply them appropriately
Timeliness: the duty applies at the time of considering proposals and before a final decision is taken
Real Consideration: the duty must be an integral and rigorous part of your decision-making and influence the process.
Sufficient Information: you must assess what information you have and what is needed to give proper consideration.
No delegation: the council is responsible for ensuring that anyone who provides services on our behalf can comply with the duty, are required in contracts to comply with it, and do comply in practice. It is a duty that
cannot be delegated.
Review: the equality duty is a continuing duty – it continues after proposals are implemented/reviewed.
Proper Record Keeping: we must keep records of the process and the impacts identified.




Our duties in the Equality Act 2010
HCC has a legal duty under this Act to show that we have identified and considered the impact and potential impact of our activities on all people with ‘protected characteristics’ (see end notes 11-20 for details of the nineprotected characteristics). This applies to policies, services (including commissioned services), and our employees. If you are creating an ‘arms-length’ company, seek advice from the Equality Team or Legal.
2

Agenda Pack Page 101

We use this template to do this and evidence our consideration. You must give ‘due regard’ (pay conscious attention) to the need to:




Avoid, reduce or minimise negative impact: if you identify unlawful discrimination, including victimisation and harassment, you must stop the action and take advice immediately.



Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and those who don’t: e.g. by promoting understanding.

Promote





equality of opportunity: by
Removing or minimising disadvantages suffered by equality groups
Taking steps to meet the needs of equality groups
Encouraging equality groups to participate in public life or any other activity where participation is disproportionately low
Consider if there is a need to treat disabled people differently, including more favourable treatment where necessary

EqIAs should always be proportionate to:

The size of the service or scope of the policy/strategy

The resources involved

The size of the likely impact – e.g. the numbers of people affected and their vulnerability
The greater the potential adverse impact of the proposal(s) on a protected group (e.g. disabled people) and the more vulnerable the group is, the more thorough and demanding the process required by the Act will be. Unless
they contain sensitive personal/employee data – EqIAs are public documents. They are published with Cabinet and Panel papers and public consultations and are available on request.
3

4
5

Who completes the EqIA: The person who is making the decision or advising the decision-maker about a policy? It is better to do this as a team, with people involved who understand the implementation of the policy.
Title of EqIA: This should clearly explain what service / policy / strategy / change you are assessing.

6 Focus of EqIA: A member of the public should have a good understanding of the policy or service and any proposals after reading this section. Please use plain English and write any acronyms in full first time. Also explain if
there is a particular focus to your equality analysis:

What are the main aims or purpose of the policy, practice, service or function? How does it fit with other services?

What outcomes do you want to achieve, why and for whom? E.g. what do you want to provide, what will change/improve?

Which aspects are most important to equality and should be the focus of your attention?

You should state all teams/organisations involved in implementing, carrying out or delivering the policy, practice or service

What are the reason(s) for the proposal or change (financial, service, legal etc)? The Act requires us to make these clear.
7

Data & Information: Your EqIA needs to be informed by data. You should consider the following:



What data relevant to the impact on protected groups is available?

95

(Is there an existing EqIA? local service data, national data, community data, similar proposal in another local authority).






8

What further evidence is needed and how can you get it? (E.g. further research or engagement with the affected groups).
What do you know from service/local data about needs, access and outcomes? Focus on each characteristic in turn.
What might any local demographic changes or trends mean for the service or function? Also consider national data if appropriate
Does data/monitoring show that any policies or practices create particular problems or difficulties for any group(s)?
Is the service having a positive or negative effect on particular people or groups in the community?

What have people told you about the service, function, area?







Agenda Pack Page 102

9

Use service user feedback, complaints, audits, and/or the results of specific consultation/engagement
Are there patterns or differences in what people from different groups tell you?
Remember, you must engage/consult appropriately and in an inclusive way with those likely to be affected to fulfil the equality duty.
You can read HCC’s Consultation and Engagement toolkits for full advice on this
For practical tips and advice on consulting with people from protected groups, see this ‘How-to’ guide

Impact: Your EqIA must consider fully and properly actual and potential impacts against each protected characteristic:






10

Be accurate and transparent, but also realistic: don’t exaggerate speculative risks and negative impacts.
Be detailed and specific where you can so decision-makers have a concrete sense of potential effects.
Questions to ask when assessing whether and how the proposals impact on service users, staff and the wider community:
o
Are one or more protected groups affected differently and/or disadvantaged? How, and to what extent?
o
Is there evidence of higher/lower uptake among different groups? Which, and to what extent?
o
Does the project relate to an area with known inequalities (where national evidence or previous research is available)?
o
If there are likely to be different impacts on different groups, is that consistent with the overall objective?
o
If there is negative differential impact, how can you minimise that while taking into account your overall aims?
o
Do the effects amount to unlawful discrimination? If so the plan must be modified.
o
Does it relate to an area where equality objectives have been set by HCC in our Equality Strategy?

Consider actions relating to the following:






11

The equality duty does not stop changes, but means we must fully consider and address the anticipated impacts on people.

That specifically address the impacts you’ve identified and show how they will remove, reduce or avoid any negative impacts
Explain clearly what any mitigating measures are, and the extent to which you think they will reduce / remove the adverse effect
Will you need to communicate or provide services in different ways for different groups in order to create a “level playing field”?
State how you can maximise any positive impacts or advance equality of opportunity.
If you do not have sufficient equality information, state how you can fill the gaps.

Age: People of all ages, but consider in particular children and young people, older people and carers, looked after children and young people leaving care. Also consider working age people.

12 Disability: When looking at disability, consideration should be given to people with different types of impairments: physical (including mobility), learning, aural or sensory (including hearing and vision impairment), visible and
non-visible impairment. Consideration should also be given to: people with HIV, people with mental health needs and people with drug and alcohol problems. People with conditions such as diabetes and cancer and some other
health conditions also have protection under the Equality Act 2010.
13 Gender Reassignment: In the Act a transgender person is someone who proposes to, starts or has completed a process to change his or her gender. A person does not need to be under medical supervision to be protected.
Consider transgender people, transsexual people and transvestites.

Pregnancy and Maternity: When looking at pregnancy and maternity, give consideration to pregnant women, breastfeeding mothers, part-time workers, women with caring responsibilities, women who are lone parents and
parents on low incomes, women on maternity leave and Keeping in Touch days.

14

96

15 Race/Ethnicity: Apart from the common ethnic groups, consideration should also be given to Gypsy, Roma and Irish Travellers communities, and people of other nationalities outside Britain who reside here, refugees and
asylum seekers and speakers of other languages.
16 Religion and Belief: Religion includes any religion with a clear structure and belief system. As a minimum you should consider the most common religious groups (Christian, Muslim, Hindu, Jews, Sikh, and Buddhist) and
people with no religion or philosophical belief(s).

Sex/Gender: Consider girls and women, boys and men, married people, civil partners, part-time workers, carers (both of children with disabilities and older cares), parents (mothers and fathers), in particular lone parents and
parents on low incomes.

17

18

Sexual Orientation: The Act protects bisexual, heterosexual, gay and lesbian people.

19

Marriage and Civil Partnership: consider married people and civil partners – e.g. do same sex couple in a civil partnership have the same rights and benefits as married people?

Carers: From April 2015, carers (people who provide unpaid care to a friend or relative) have been entitled to an assessment of their own needs in the same way as those they care for. Although not a ‘protected
characteristic’ HCC Diversity Board has agreed that the impact of proposals on carers should also be considered.

20

21 Other relevant groups: You should consider the impact on our service users in other related areas, such as health and wellbeing, crime and disorder (e.g. people experiencing domestic abuse), community relations and
socio-economic status (e.g. homelessness or low incomes). If the proposal is likely to have an impact on service users in these areas, HCC Public Health and the County Community Safety Unit may be able to help. Also
consider whether your policy or decision will impact current or former Armed Forces personnel living and working in Hertfordshire. The Council is committed to the Hertfordshire Community Covenant, a commitment from public
and private organisations in the county to support the active and retired Armed Forces community.

Agenda Pack Page 103

22 Equality of opportunity and good relations: summarise anything that will have a potential positive impact over and above the work of your project – e.g. engaging with the community may help raise awareness and
community understanding of the needs of certain groups.
23

Conclusion



Make a frank and realistic assessment of the overall extent to which the negative impacts can be reduced or avoided by the mitigating measures. Also explain what positive impacts will result from the actions
and how you can make the most of these.




Make it clear if a change is needed to the proposal itself. Is further engagement, research or monitoring needed?
Make it clear if, as a result of the analysis, the policy/proposal should be stopped.

Action Planning: The Equality Duty is an ongoing duty: policies must be kept under review, continuing to give ‘due regard’ to the duty. If an assessment of a broad proposal leads to more specific proposals, then further
equality assessment and consultation are needed.

24

97

This page is intentionally left blank

